CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

"PROPOSED BRIDGE REPAIR OF PEDESTRIAN SUSPENSION BRIDGE – PITTSYLVANIA WAYSIDE PARK OVER SYCAMORE CREEK"

IFB 2021110

Business Savvy. People Friendly.



PITTSYLVANIA COUNTY, VIRGINIA

Contact:

Connie Gibson, Purchasing Manager (434) 432-7744 Email: connie.gibson@pittgov.org

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS FOR IFB 20-21-110 "PROPOSED BRIDGE REPAIR OF PEDESTRIAN SUSPENSION BRIDGE – PITTSYLVANIA WAYSIDE PARK OVER SYCAMORE CREEK"

PITTSYLVANIA COUNTY, VIRGINIA

COMMISSION NO. 2020019



BY

SCHWARTZ & ASSOCIATES, INC. CONSULTING ENGINEERS HERITAGE BUSINESS CENTER 7331 TIMBERLAKE ROAD LYNCHBURG, VIRGINIA 24502

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
<u>NUMBERS</u>	<u>ITIOL</u>
ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS	1
BID PROPOSAL FORM	2 - 8
CONTRACTORS CERTIFICATION	9
APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT	10 - 12
SECTION STANDARD REQUIREMENTS & INSTRUCTIONS FOR BIDDING	1-1 - 1-32
APPENDIX A: SAMPLE AGREEMENT	33 - 36
NOTICE OF AWARD	37
NOTICE TO PROCEED	38
APPENDIX B: ESCROW AGREEMENT	39-40
APPENDIX C: EXAMPLE OF CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE	41
SECTION 2:	
SPECIAL CONDITIONS	2-1 - 2-5
SECTION 3:	
SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS	3-1 – 3-2
SECTION 4:	
SPECIAL PROVISIONS AND REVISIONS TO VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION ROAD AND BRIDGE SPECIFICATIONS, 2020	4-1
SECTION 5:	
TECHNICAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS	05000 - 05060
BONDS: (ALL OF THESE SHEETS TO BE ADDED AND MADE A PART OF CONTRACT)	
A. BID BOND (TO BE PROVIDED BY CONTRACTOR)	
B. PERFORMANCE BOND (TO BE PROVIDED BY CONTRACTOR	3)
C. PAYMENT BOND (TO BE PROVIDED BY CONTRACTOR)	
D. CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE (TO BE PROVIDED BY CONTR	RACTOR)

BID NUMBER – IFB 20-21-110

INVITATION FOR BIDS

Sealed Bids for "PROPOSED BRIDGE REPAIR OF PEDESTRIAN SUSPENSION BRIDGE – PITTSYLVANIA WAYSIDE PARK OVER SYCAMORE CREEK" will be received by the Purchasing Office, 1 Center Street, Chatham, Virginia 24531 until 2:00 p.m., March 29, 2022 and publicly opened at 2:05 pm, March 29, 2022. BIDS RECEIVED AFTER THE DATE AND TIME SPECIFIED WILL BE REJECTED. This project involves dismantle and remove portion of existing structure, furnish and install new suspension cable and floorbeam hanger system, replace timber floorbeams, stringers, decking and rail system, and repoint masonry joints.

A mandatory pre-bid conference will be held at 10:00 a.m., March 8, 2022, Martin Conference Room, 1 Center Street, Chatham, Virginia 24531 and then proceed to the site located at Wayside Park, 1678 Main Street, Hurt, Virginia 24563 to answer any questions from interested parties.

All requests for clarification of or questions regarding this Advertisement for Bids or for additional information must be made in writing, by email, to Connie Gibson at connie.gibson@pittgov.org and received by 1:00 p.m., March 15, 2022. An addenda will be issued and posted on www.pittsylvaniacountyva.gov by March 16, 12:00 pm with all responses. All posted clarifications as an addenda must be acknowledged with bid submittal, failure to do so may subject bidder to disqualification.

Drawings and Specifications (.pdf format) for use in bid preparation may be obtained from Schwartz & Associates, Inc., Consulting Engineers, 7331-305 Timberlake Road, Lynchburg, VA 24502 or Pittsylvania County website under Bid Postings.

Bids will only be accepted from Contractors who are actively engaged in the type of construction of the item(s) called for in the bid. No proposal will be accepted from or contract awarded to any person, firm or corporation that is in arrears or is in default to the County upon any debt or contract, or that is a defaulter, as surety or otherwise, upon any obligation to said County or had failed to perform faithfully any previous contract with the County. Where an installation or assembly is to be performed by a subcontractor, the bidder must name the subcontractor, and the County reserves the right to determine whether the named subcontractor is fit and capable to perform the required work.

The liquidated damages for delay beyond the allotted time for completion of this project shall be \$1500.00 per day for each consecutive calendar day, including weekends and holidays, that the work remains incomplete.

Connie Gibson Purchasing Manager

BID PROPOSAL FORM

Ms. Connie Gibson Purchasing Manager 1 Center Street P. O. Box 426 Chatham, Virginia 24531

Dear Madam:

The undersigned, as Bidder, hereby declares that he or he and his associates are the only person or persons interested in the proposal as principal or principals; that this proposal is made without connection with any other person, company or parties making a bid or proposal; and that it is in all respects fair and in good faith without collusion or fraud.

The undersigned, having visited and examined the site and having carefully studied all drawings and specifications pertaining to the project known as "PROPOSED BRIDGE REPAIR OF PEDESTRIAN SUSPENSION BRIDGE – PITTSYLVANIA WAYSIDE PARK OVER SYCAMORE CREEK" for the Pittsylvania County, Virginia, hereby proposes to furnish all labor, equipment, tools, materials and services and to perform all operations necessary to execute and complete the work required for the project, in strict accordance with the Specifications for this project, Road & Bridge Specifications by Virginia Department of Transportation, 2020, and Engineering Drawings by Schwartz & Associates, Inc., Consulting Engineers, together with Addenda Numbered ________, issued during bidding period and hereby acknowledged, subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement for the sum of __________ DOLLARS (\$) which shall be referred to hereinafter as the BID. All work shall be completed on or before October 7, 2022 unless otherwise approved by the ENGINEER.

It is understood and agreed that the OWNER, in protecting his best interest, reserves the right to reject any or all bids or waive any defects in favor of the County.

Contractors will indicate a unit price for each item listed below. The listed bid items are to contain all necessary costs required for completion of the referenced project. Any changes, modifications, deletions in the bid form, or alternate proposals not specified in the bid proposal, shall make the proposal irregular and subject to rejection.

It is understood that all quantities listed below are estimated quantities and the OWNER reserves the right to raise, lower, or eliminate any quantity or item and in any case the unit prices shall be used in determining partial and final payment.

Compliance with state law; foreign and domestic businesses authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth.

A. A Contractor organized as a stock or nonstock corporation, limited liability company, business trust, or limited partnership or registered as a registered limited liability partnership shall be authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth as a domestic or foreign business entity if so required by Title 13.1 or Title 50 or as otherwise required by law.

- B. Pursuant to competitive sealed bidding or competitive negotiation, all public bodies shall include in the solicitation a provision that requires a bidder or offeror organized or authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth pursuant to Title 13.1 or Title 50 to include in its bid or proposal the identification number issued to it by the State Corporation Commission. Any bidder or offeror that is not required to be authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth as a foreign business entity under Title 13.1 or Title 50 or as otherwise required by law shall include in its bid or proposal a statement describing why the bidder or offeror is not required to be so authorized.
- C. Any bidder or offeror described in subsection B that fails to provide the required information shall not receive an award unless a waiver of this requirement and the administrative policies and procedures established to implement this section is granted by the Director of the Department of General Services or his designee or by the chief executive of a local governing body.
- D. Any business entity described in subsection A that enters into a contract with a public body pursuant to this chapter shall not allow its existence to lapse or its certificate of authority or registration to transact business in the Commonwealth, if so required under Title 13.1 or Title 50, to be revoked or cancelled at any time during the term of the contract.
- E. A public body may void any contract with a business entity if the business entity fails to remain in compliance with the provisions of this section.

PERMITS

The Contractor shall, at his own expense, secure any business or professional licenses, permits or pay any fees required by Pittsylvania County and the Town of Hurt or Commonwealth of Virginia to include securing a Pittsylvania County business license. For further information, contact the Town of Hurt at (434) 608-0554.

Pittsylvania County Business License:

The successful bidder and all subcontractors working on this project are required to hold a valid County business license when they begin work. This license shall be obtained from the Town of Hurt at 533 Pocket Road, P. O. Box 760, Hurt, Virginia 24563.

BID ITEM LIST

"PROPOSED BRIDGE REPAIR OF PEDESTRIAN SUSPENSION BRIDGE – PITTSYLVANIA WAYSIDE PARK OVER SYCAMORE CREEK"

PITTSYLVANIA COUNTY, VIRGINIA

NO MAJOR ITEMS & NO PRICE ADJUSTMENTS

ITEM <u>NUMBER</u>	DESCRIPTION	ESTIMATED QUANTITIES	UNIT <u>PRICE</u>	TOTAL AMOUNT
1	MOBILIZATION	LUMP SUM	LUMP SUM	\$
2	MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC	LUMP SUM	LUMP SUM	\$
3	DISMANTLE & REMOVE PORTION OF EXIST. STRUCTURE	LUMP SUM	LUMP SUM	\$
4	SUSPENSION CABLE & FLOORBEAM HANGER SYSTEM	LUMP SUM	LUMP SUM	\$
5	TIMBER DECKING	333 SF	\$	\$
6	TIMBER STRINGERS & TIMBER DIAPHRAGMS	263 LF	\$	\$
7	TIMBER FLOORBEAMS	10 EACH	\$	\$
8	TIMBER RAIL	157 LF	\$	\$
9	REPOINTING MASONRY JOINTS – TYPE A	135 LF	\$	\$
		TOTAL BASE BID		\$

We are properly equipped to execute all work of the character and extent of the agreement as so covered by this bid and will enter into an agreement for the execution and completion of the work in accordance with the drawings and specifications and this bid. We further agree that if awarded the contract, we will maintain a work force large enough to execute the work and all obligations within 145 consecutive calendar days, after the effective date of the "Notice to Proceed". All work shall be completed on or before October 7, 2022. This is a "Fixed Completion Date" contract with the "Fixed Completion Date" being 145 days after effective dated of the "Notice to Proceed". Enclosed herewith is the following Security, offered as evidence that the undersigned will enter into agreement for the execution and completion of the work in accordance with the Drawings, Specifications, and Contract Documents.

Bidder's Bond or Certified Check i	n the amoun	t of \$					
Bond issued by or name of bank							
within the ten (10) consecutive cale Award", the monies payable by t	ndar days at he securities quidated dar	failure on his part to execute the said agreement fter written notice being given on the "Notice of accompanying this bid, shall be paid to the mages for such failure; otherwise the Securities dersigned.					
If awarded this contract, since our b account procedure in the Standard R	equirements						
This bid is subject to acceptance with	nin a period o	of 90 days from this date.					
		Respectfully submitted,					
		CONTRACTOR					
		ADDRESS					
	BY: TITLE:						
DATE:							
Current Contractor's Virginia Registration No. :		Contractor's Virginia SCC No. :					

ORDER NO.: CONTRACT ID. NO.:

Form C-105 Rev. 7-13-05

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AFFIDAVIT

	7411	27 (VII	
PROJECT:			
FHWA:			
		eturned with bid; and failure to do so, may result in ted by each principal of a joint venture bid.	ı the
1.	indirectly entered into any combinati or entered into any agreement, parti in restraint of free competitive biddir	gents or employees thereof have neither directly on or arrangement with any person, firm or corpora cipated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any acg in connection with such contract, the effect of we the cost of construction or maintenance of road	ation ction hich
		I (we) have been a member of the following Highed in Section 33.2-1106 of the Code of Virginia.	
	NAME	Location of Principal Office	
2.	subject to the equal opportunity clau 11246, and that I/We have, had the Director of the Office of Fed contracting or administering agence.		4, or ttee, nent
	Regulations of the Secretary of Lal bidders and proposed subcontracto which are subject to the equal opport	s required by the Equal Employment Opportu- for [41 CFR 60-1.7(b)(1)], and must be submitted is only in connection with contracts and subcontri- rtunity clause. Contracts and subcontracts which lause are set forth in 41 CFR 60-1.5. (Generally of or under are exempt.)	d by acts are
	Currently, Standard Form 100 (EEC or their implementing regulations.	-1) is the only report required by the Executive Ord	ders
contra reports subco other	ct or subcontract subject to the Exect s should note that 41 CFR 60-1.7(ntract unless such contractor submits a	actors who have participated in a previous utive Orders and have not filed the required b) (1) prevents the award of contract and a report covering the delinquent period or such ay Administration or by the Director, Office of ent of Labor.	

(Continued)

ORDER NO.: CONTRACT ID. NO.:

Form C-105 page 2

- 3. The bidder certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:
 - (a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
 - (b) Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgement rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offence in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
 - (c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated above; and
 - (d) Where the bidders is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, the bidder shall show an explanation below.

Explanations will not necessarily result in denial of award, but will be considered in determining bidder responsibility. For any explanation noted, indicate below to whom it applies, initiating agency, and dates of action. Providing false information may result in federal criminal prosecution or administration sanctions. The bidder shall provide immediate written notice to the Department if at any time the bidder learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of change circumstances.

The undersigned is duly authorized by the bidder to make the foregoing statements to be filed with bids submitted on behalf of the bidder for contracts to be let by the Commonwealth Transportation Board.

Signed at	, this day of	, 20
County (City), STATE		
	By:	
(Name of Firm)	(Signature)	Title (print)
STATE of	COUNTY (CITY) of	
	To-wit:	
T	, a Notary Publ	ic in and for the State and
County(City) aforesaid, hereby certify that this d	ay	
personally appeared before me and made oath and that such statements are true and correct.	that he is duly authorized to make	e the above statements
Subscribed and sworn to before me this	day of	, 20
	My Commission expires	3
Notary Public		

Form C-104 Rev. 7-13-05

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

DEPARTMENT C	F TRANSPOR	RTATION	
PROJECT:			
FHWA:			
This form must be completed, signed and returned your bid. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL AFFIRM THE AFFIDAVIT AND HA VING IT NOTARIZE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LIMUST BE SUBMITTED BY EACH PRINCIPAL OF	THE FOLLOWIN D <u>OR</u> BY SIGNIN AWS OF THE UI	G STATEMENT IG THE UNSWO NITED STATES	FEITHER BY SIGNING DRN DECLARATION
STATEMENT, In preparation and submission of employees thereof did not, either directly or indire persons, firm or corporation or enter into any agreaction in the restraint of free, competitive bidding Article 1.1 or Chapter 12 of Title 18.2 (Virginia Go 9.17 or Sections 59.1-68.6 through 59.1-68.8 of the	ectly, enter into an eement, participate in violation of the overnmental Frauc	y combination of e in any collusion e Sherman Act (ds Act), Sections	or arrangement with any n, or otherwise take any (15 U.S.C. Section 1) or
All The undersigned is duly authorized by the bidded submitted on behalf of the bidder for contracts to be			
Signed at	, this	_ day of	, 20
County (City), STATE	Ву:		
(Name of Firm)	(Signat		Title (print)
STATE of	To-wit:		
	<u> </u>	Notary Public in	n and for the State and
County(City) aforesaid, hereby certify that this day		rized to make th	a above statements
personally appeared before me and made oath that and that such statements are true and correct.	it he is duly author	ized to make th	e above statements
Subscribed and sworn to before me this	day of		, 20
Natan - Dublia	My Commi	ission expires	
Notary Public UNSWOR	OR N DECLARATION	I	
The undersigned is duly authorized by the bidde submitted on behalf of the bidder for contracts to b			

Signed at ______ , this ____ day of _____ , 20 ____

(Name of Firm)

CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATION

This is to certify that I (we) are not currently barred from bidding on contracts by any agency of The Commonwealth of Virginia, nor am I (we) a part of any firm/corporation that is currently barred from bidding on contracts by any agency of The Commonwealth of Virginia.

(Address)
By:
Title: Date:

APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT NO. _____

CONTRACTO	DR:		DA	NTE:	
PROJECT NAME: _		PROJECT NO.:		COMPLETION DATE:	

ITEM NO.	CONTRACT	CONTRACT UNIT PRICE	DESCRIPTION	CONTRACT AMOUNT	QUANTITIE S THIS REQ.	VALUE THIS REQUISITION	QUANTITY TO DATE	VALUE TO DATE

APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT NO. _____

	CONTRA	ACTOR: _		DATE:				
PROJ	IECT NAM	E:	PROJECT NO.: COMPLETION DATE:				-	
ITEM NO.	CONTRACT	CONTRACT UNIT PRICE	DESCRIPTION	CONTRACT AMOUNT	QUANTITIE S THIS REQ.	VALUE THIS REQUISITION	QUANTITY TO DATE	VALUE TO DATE

	CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY					
CHANGE ORDER NUMBER	DATE APPROVED	ADDITION S	DEDUCTION S	COMPLETIO N DATE EXTENDED		

TOTAL S

ORIGINAL CONTRACT SUM
NET CHANGE BY CHANGE ORDER
CONTRACT SUM TO DATE
TOTAL COMPLETED & STORED TO DATE
RETAINAGE 5%
TOTAL EARNED LESS RETAINAGE
LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENT
CURRENT PAYMENT DUE

APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

payments received from above have been applied incurred in connection v being Applications for equipment incorporated	the owner on account of Work performed under the couple by the undersigned to discharge in full all obligations of the Work covered by prior Applications for Payment understand the payment numbered 1 through inclusive; and (2) in said Project or otherwise listed in or covered by the or of all liens, claims, security interest, and encumbrance	ontract referred to of the undersigned nder said contract, all materials and its Application for
DATED	20	
	20 (CONTRACTOR)	
	BY:	
	BY:NAME AND TITLE	
COUNTY OFSTATE OF)) ss	
Before me on this day to me, who being duly so	of, 20 personally appeared or, did depose and say that he is the or (office)	known of the
	ned, that he executed the above Application for Paymen r, and that all of the statements contained herein are	
	NOTARY PUBLIC	
	No Triter Pobble	
MY COMMISSION EX	PIRES:	

12

Application for Payment: Sheet 3 of 3

SECTION 1 STANDARD REQUIREMENTS & INSTRUCTIONS FOR BIDDING

PITTSYLVANIA COUNTY

Purchasing Department

STANDARD REQUIREMENTS & INSTRUCTIONS FOR BIDDING

Applicable to all construction work performed under contract to the County (supersedes all prior versions)

Table of Contents

<u>Section</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>Page</u>
1.1	Definitions	1
1.2	Bidder Eligibility	2
1.3	Bid Submittal	3
1.4	Award Criteria	5
1.5	Guaranty	5
1.6	Covered Work	6
1.7	Bonds & Insurance	6
1.8	Matters of Law	9
1.9	Specifications	11
1.10	Jobsite Safety	12
1.11	Completion Schedule	13
1.12	Traffic Control	13
1.13	Property Maintenance	14
1.14	Progress Of Work	14
1.15	Remuneration	17
1.16	Termination/Stoppages, etc	19
1.17	Work Changes	20
1.18	Utilities	23
1.19	Environmental Protection	24
1.20	Erosion Control	25
	Appendix A: Sample Agreement	28

Notice of Award	32
Notice to Proceed	33
Appendix B: Escrow Agreement	34
Appendix C: Example of Certificate of Liability Insurance	36

1.0 STANDARD REQUIREMENTS & INSTRUCTIONS FOR BIDDING

1.1 DEFINITIONS

The following terms and expressions used in this document shall be understood as follows:

- 1.1.1 Wherever the word "County" or "Owner" is used, it shall be understood to mean the Pittsylvania County, Virginia.
- 1.1.2 Wherever the word "Contractor" is used, it shall be understood to mean the party engaged to perform all work described herein.
- 1.1.3 Wherever the word "Engineer" is used, it shall be understood to mean the County Engineer, or his duly appointed successor, or representative, acting within the scope of the duties entrusted to them and as stated in the contract.
- 1.1.4 Wherever the word "Subcontractor" is used, it shall be understood to mean persons, firms, or corporations having a direct contact with the Contractor, and including those who furnish materials worked to a special design in accordance with the plans and specifications, but not including those who merely furnish materials not so worked.
- 1.1.5 Wherever the word "Addenda" is used, it shall mean written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of Bids which clarify, correct, or change the bidding documents or the Contract Documents.
- 1.1.6 Wherever the word "Agreement" is used, it shall mean the written agreement between the County and Contractor covering the Work to be performed; other Contract Documents are attached to the Agreement and made a part thereof as provided therein.
- 1.1.7 Wherever the word "Bid" is used, it shall mean the offer or proposal of the bidder submitted on the prescribed form setting forth the prices for the Work to be performed.
- 1.1.8 Wherever the word "Shop Drawings" is used, it shall be understood to mean all drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data which are specifically prepared by or for Contractor to illustrate some portion of the Work and all illustrations, brochures, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, diagrams, and other information prepared by a supplier and submitted by Contractor to illustrate material or equipment for some portion of the Work.
- 1.1.9 Wherever the word "Specifications" is used, it shall be understood to mean those portions of the Contract Documents consisting of written technical descriptions of material, equipment, construction systems, standards, and workmanship as applied to the Work and certain administrative details applicable thereto.
- 1.1.10 Wherever the word "Supplier" is used, it shall be understood to mean a manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman, or vendor.

- 1.1.11 Wherever the word "Work" is used, it shall be understood to mean the entire completed construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be furnished under the Contract Documents. Work is the result of performing services, furnishing labor and furnishing and incorporating materials and equipment into the construction, all as required by the Contract Documents.
- 1.1.12 Wherever the word "Plans" or "Drawings" is used, it shall be understood to mean the Contract Plans, accompanying the specifications and such detail and supplementary drawings as may be furnished from time to time. Plans may be included as part of the specifications. Therefore, the Contractor is directed to familiarize himself with the contents of the complete contract documents.
- 1.1.13 Wherever in the specifications or upon the drawings the words "as directed", "as required", "as permitted", or words of like effect are used, it shall be understood that the direction, requirement, or permission of the Engineer is intended and similarly the words "approved", "satisfactory", or words of like import, shall mean approved or acceptable or satisfactory to the Engineer.
- 1.1.14 Whenever the word "Contract" or "Contract Documents" is used, it shall mean and include Invitation for Bids, Bid Proposal, Agreement between County and Contractor, General Conditions, Payment Bond, Performance Bond, Notice of Award, Notice To Proceed, Addenda, Change Orders, Technical Specifications, with all amendments, modifications, and supplements issued on or after the Effective date of the Agreement.
- 1.1.15 The term "Standard Specification" shall mean Road and Bridge Specifications, Virginia Department of Transportation, current edition, with all amendments.

1.2 BIDDER ELIGIBILITY

- 1.2.1 Bidders are required to submit evidence that they have practical knowledge of the particular work bid upon and that they have the financial resources to complete the proposed work. Failure on the part of any Bidder to carry out previous contracts satisfactorily, or lack of experience or equipment necessary for the satisfactory and timely completion of this Project, may be deemed sufficient cause for disqualification of said Bidder.
- 1.2.2 The Bidder must readily and independently document that the Bidder possesses the experience, equipment and financial resources necessary for a timely and professional completion of this project.
- 1.2.3 The object of any Request For Qualifications is to make it possible for the County to have exact information on the financial ability, equipment owned, and experience of the Bidder in order to reduce the hazards involved in awarding contracts to parties apparently not qualified to perform them, and to select those Bidders qualified to properly complete the Work.

- 1.2.4 Bids will only be accepted from manufacturers, authorized distributors, dealers, or contractors who are actively engaged in the sale, manufacture, or type of construction of the item(s) called for in the bid. No proposal will be accepted from or contract awarded to any person, firm, or corporation that is in arrears or is in default to the County upon any debt or contract, or that is a defaulter, as surety or otherwise, upon any obligation to said County or had failed to perform faithfully any previous contract with the County. Where an installation or assembly is to be performed by a subcontractor, the bidder must name the subcontractor, and the County reserves the right to determine whether the named subcontractor is fit and capable to perform the required work. If County, after due investigation, has reasonable objection to any proposed Subcontractor, other person, or organization, it may before giving the Notice of Award request the apparent low Bidder to submit an acceptable substitute without an increase in his Bid price. Any Subcontractor, other person, or organization so listed and to whom the County does not make written objection prior to the giving of the Notice of Award will be deemed acceptable to the County. This does not remove responsibilities for said Subcontractors, suppliers, etc., to comply with the Contract Specifications. The Contractor shall not be required to employ a Subcontractor, other person, or organization against whom he has reasonable objection. The County reserves the right to reject any proposal where an investigation of the available evidence or information does not satisfy the County that the Bidder is qualified to carry out properly the terms of the Contract. The County's decision as to qualifications of the Bidder shall be final.
- 1.2.5 Under § 54.1-1100 to 54.1-1117 of the Code of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the Contractor shall possess a Class "A" Contractor's license on bids exceeding seventy thousand dollars (\$70,000.) and Class "B" registration on bids exceeding one thousand five hundred dollars (\$1,500.). For further information, contact the Board for Contractors, Virginia Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation (804-367-8500).

1.3 BID SUBMITTAL

1.3.1 EXAMINATION OF SITE AND PROJECT INFORMATION

- a. Bidders shall investigate and inspect the sites of the Work contemplated before preparing their Proposals in order to acquaint themselves as to the actual nature, character, conditions, quality requirements of the Work, subsurface conditions, and accuracy of estimated quantities.
- b. All information given on the drawings or in the contract documents relating to existing subsurface and surface conditions and other structures is from the best sources at present available to the County. All such information is furnished only for the information and convenience of the Bidders.
- c. It is agreed and understood that the County does not warrant or guarantee that the existing conditions or other structures encountered during the construction will be the same as those indicated on the drawings or in Contract Documents. The Bidder must be satisfied regarding the character, quantities and conditions of the various materials and the work to be done.

d. It is further agreed and understood that the Bidder will not use any of the information made available or obtained in any examination in any manner as a basis or ground of claim or demand of any nature against the County or Engineer arising from or by reason of any variance which may exist between the information offered and the actual conditions, materials, or structures encountered during the Work, except as may otherwise be provided for in the Contract Documents.

1.3.2 BID PREPARATION

- a. Bid proposals must be written in ink or typewritten and shall be submitted on the forms issued. Unsigned bids will not be accepted. No bid may be considered if received after the time shown on page one of the bid invitation. Contractors are expected to examine all instructions, specifications of the bid invitation, drawings, sites, installations, etc. Failure to do so will be at the Contractor's risk. Erasures or other changes must be initialed by the person signing the bid.
- b. Envelopes containing bids must be sealed and marked in the lower left hand corner with the invitation number, project title, and submitted to the office indicated on page number one (1) of the bid invitation.

1.3.3 INTERPRETATION

- a. If any person contemplating the submission of a bid is in doubt as to the true meaning of any part of the Invitation For Bid or other documents, he should submit a written request for an interpretation thereof to the Purchasing Manager or the Engineer. An interpretation of the bid invitation document will be made only by written addendum issued to each potential bidder. The County will not be responsible for explanations or interpretations of bid invitation documents except as issued in accordance herewith.
- b. All notices, requests, instructions, approvals, and proposals, must be in writing.
- c. If during performance of the project, the Contractor finds a conflict, error, or discrepancy in the Contract Documents, he shall so report to the Engineer in writing at once before proceeding and shall obtain a written interpretation or clarification from the Engineer.
- d. In resolving such conflicts, errors, and discrepancies, the documents shall be given precedence in the following order: Agreement, Modifications, Addenda, Supplementary Conditions, Instruction to Bidders, Standard Requirements & Instructions for Bidding, Proposal and Specifications/Drawings. Figure dimensions on drawings shall govern over scale dimensions and detailed drawing shall govern over general drawings.

1.3.4 IRREGULAR BID PROPOSALS

Bid proposals shall be considered irregular for the following reasons:

- a. If the bid is on a form other than that furnished by the County, if the County's form is altered, or if any part of the proposal form is detached.
- b. If there are unauthorized additions, conditional or alternate pay items, or irregularities of any kind, which make the proposal incomplete, indefinite, or otherwise ambiguous.
- c. If the bid does not contain a unit or lump sum price for each pay item listed in the proposal.
- d. If the bid contains unit or lump sum prices that are obviously unbalanced.
- e. If the bid is not accompanied by the proposal guaranty specified by the County.

1.3.5 WITHDRAWAL OF BID DUE TO ERROR

- a. A bidder for a County construction contract, other than a contract for construction or maintenance of public highways, may withdraw his bid from consideration, if the price bid was substantially lower than the other bids due solely to a mistake therein, provided the bid was submitted in good faith and the mistake was a clerical mistake, as opposed to a judgment mistake, and was actually due to an unintentional arithmetic error or an unintentional omission of a quantity of work, labor, or material made directly in the compilation of the bid, which unintentional arithmetic error or unintentional omission can be clearly shown by objective evidence drawn from inspection of original work papers, documents, and materials used in the preparation of the bid sought to be withdrawn.
- b. The bidder shall give notice in writing of his claim of the right to withdraw his bid within two (2) business days after the conclusion of the bid opening procedure.

1.3.6 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

A bidder shall be considered disqualified for any of the following reasons:

- a. Submitting more than one proposal from the same partnership, firm, or corporation under the same or different name.
- b. Evidence of collusion among bidders. Bidders participating in such collusion shall be disqualified as bidders for any future work of the County until any such participating bidder has been reinstated by the County as a qualified bidder.
- c. If the bidder is considered to be in "default" for any reason specified in §1.2 "Bidder Eligibility" and § 1.3 "Bid Submittal."

1.4 AWARD CRITERIA

- 1.4.1 Unless otherwise specified all formal bids submitted shall be binding for ninety (90) calendar days following bid opening date.
- 1.4.2 The award will be made to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder whose proposal conforming to the invitation will be most advantageous to the County, price and other factors considered such as completion time, fiscal stability of the bidder, prior experience in the type of work called-for in the Invitation, management resources, owned, equipment, service, resale value, etc.
- 1.4.3 The County reserves the right to reject any or all offers and to waive informalities and minor irregularities in offers received.
- 1.4.4 After notice from the County, the successful bidder has ten (10) days to enter into a contract or forfeit as liquidated damages the security deposit. By executing the contract, the Contractor certifies that he has reviewed the Contract Documents and the project area and accepts the conditions of each (See Appendix A, Sample Contract).

1.4.5 NEGOTIATION

In the event the bid from the lowest responsible bidder exceeds available funds, the County may negotiate with the apparent low bidder to obtain a contract price within available funds. The procedures for such negotiations shall be as follows:

- a. County, Engineer, and apparent low bidder together will review the project and attempt to find mutually agreeable proposed changes that will effectively reduce the cost of the project.
- Apparent low bidder will present reasonably documented and substantiated proposed deductions in project cost for each potential project change, which will allow County to evaluate each proposed deduction.
- c. The parties will attempt to negotiate and sign a reasonable contract for the entire project, the price of which does not exceed available funds.

1.5 GUARANTY

- 1.5.1 The Contractor shall guarantee that all the materials used and all the work done under the contract shall fully comply with the requirements of the plans and specifications and the instructions of the County.
- 1.5.2 Any defects in the completed work or failure of the construction to fully perform or endure the service for which it is intended, which in the opinion of the County are caused by or due to the use of materials, skill, or workmanship not in compliance with the said plans, specifications, and instructions, that may appear in the work within a period of twelve (12) months after acceptance by the County shall be regarded as prima facie and conclusive evidence that the Contractor has failed to comply with the said

specifications, plans, and instructions. The Contractor in this event, shall at his own expense, at such time and in such manner as the Engineer may direct, repair or take up and reconstruct any such defective work, in full compliance with the original specifications, plans, and instructions.

The repairs required to be made by the Contractor shall extend only to making good any inherent defects which become manifested in the materials and workmanship under ordinary conditions, and shall not be held to cover any breakage or damage caused by improper use or by accident from circumstances over which the Contractor has no control.

- 1.5.3 All direct, indirect and consequential costs of the County in exercising such rights and remedies will be charged against the Contractor and will be deducted from any monies due the Contractor.
- 1.5.4 The Contractor shall not be allowed an extension of the contract time because of any delay in performance of the work attributable to the exercise by the County of the County's rights and remedies hereunder.

1.6 COVERED WORK

- 1.6.1 If any Work is covered contrary to the written directive of the Engineer, it must, if requested by Engineer, be uncovered for Engineer's observation and replaced at Contractor's expense. If required by the Engineer, the Contractor shall correct all defective work, whether or not fabricated, installed, or completed, or, if the work has been rejected by Engineer, remove it from the site and replace it with non-defective work. The Contractor shall bear all direct, indirect and consequential costs of such correction or removal, including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals. Upon failure of the Contractor to correct the deficiency within a reasonable time, the County may, after seven (7) days written notice to the Contractor, correct and remedy any such deficiency and deduct the costs from any monies due the Contractor.
- 1.6.2 If the Engineer considers it necessary or advisable that covered work be inspected or tested by others, the Contractor, shall uncover, that portion of the work in question, furnishing all necessary labor, material, and equipment. If it is found that such work is defective, the Contractor shall bear all direct, indirect, and consequential costs of such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection and testing, and of satisfactory reconstruction, (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, Contractors, attorneys, and other professionals), and the County shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the contract price. If, however, such work is not found to be defective, the Contractor shall be allowed an increase in the contract price or an extension of the contract time, or both, directly attributable to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing, and reconstruction.

1.7 BONDS, INSURANCE, ETC.

1.7.1 BONDS

 a. Each bidder shall enclose in his bid package, a bid bond issued by a surety licensed to do business in Virginia in the amount of five percent (5%) of his bid total. A bank certified check will be accepted in lieu of the bid bond. b. The successful Contractor shall be required to provide performance and labor & materialman's bonds in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price.

1.7.2 INDEMNIFICATION

- a. The Contractor shall indemnify the County, its agents, officers, and employees against any damages to property or injuries to or death of any person or persons, including property and employees or agents of the County, and shall defend and indemnify the County, its agents, officers, and employees from any claims, demands, suits, actions, or proceedings of any kind, including workers' compensation claims, of or by anyone, in any way resulting from or arising out to the operations in connection with the work described in the contract, including operations of subcontractors and acts or omissions of employees or agents of Contractor or Contractor's subcontractors. Contractor shall procure and maintain, at Contractor's own costs and expense, any additional kinds and amounts of insurance that, in Contractor's own judgment, may be necessary for Contractor's proper protection in the prosecution of the work.
- b. The Contractor shall, at his own expense, appear, defend, and pay all charge of attorneys and other expenses arising there from or incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the County, and/or its officers, agents, and employees, in any such action, the Contractor shall, at his own expense, satisfy and discharge the same. The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that any performance bond or insurance protection required by this contract, or otherwise provided by the Contractor, shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep, and save harmless and defend the County, its agents, officers, and employees as herein provided.
- c. The Contractor shall assume all risks and responsibilities for casualties of every description in connection with the work, except that he shall not be held liable or responsible for delays or damage to the work caused by acts of God, acts of Public Enemy, acts of Government, quarantine restrictions, general strikes through the trade, or by freight embargoes not caused or participated in by the Contractor. The Contractor shall have charge and control of the entire work until completion and acceptance of the same by the County.
- d. The Contractor shall alone be liable and responsible for, and shall pay, any and all loss or damage sustained by any person or party either during the performance or subsequent to the completion of the work under this agreement, by reason of injuries to persons and damage to property, building, and adjacent work, that may occur either during the performance of the work covered by this contract or that may be sustained as a result of or in consequence thereof, irrespective of whether or not such injury or damage be due to negligence or the inherent nature of the work.
- e. The Contractor shall bear all losses resulting from the amount or character of the work being different, or because the nature of the premises on which the work is done is different from what was expected or on account of the weather, or similar causes.

f. The Contractor, however, will not be obligated to indemnify the County, its officers, agents, or employees against liability for damage arising out of bodily injury to persons or damage to property caused by or resulting solely from the negligence of the County or its officers, agents, and employees.

1.7.3 INSURANCE

The Contractor shall not commence work under any contract until he has obtained all the insurance required hereunder and such insurance has been approved by the County; nor shall the Contractor allow any Subcontractor to commence work on his subcontract until all similar insurance has been so obtained and approved. Approval of the insurance by the County shall not relieve or decrease the liability of the Contractor hereunder.

- a. Worker's Compensation including Occupational Disease and Employer's Liability Insurance: The Contractor shall take out and maintain during the life of the Contract, Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for all of his employees to be engaged in work on the project under this Contract in an amount no less than the minimum allowed by the State Corporation Commission, and in case any such work is sublet, the Contractor shall require the Subcontractor similarly to provide Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for all of the latter's employees to be engaged in such work.
- b. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance: The Contractor shall maintain during the life of the Contract comprehensive general liability insurance as shall protect him and the Pittsylvania County and its officers, agents, and employees from claims for damages for personal injury, including death, as well as from claims for property damage, which may arise from operations under the Contract, whether such operations be by himself or by any Subcontractor, or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them. The amount of such insurance shall be not less than a combined single limit of \$1,000,000.00 per occurrence on bodily injury and property damage and \$1,000,000.00 aggregate on completed operations. The comprehensive general liability insurance shall provide the following coverage:

Comprehensive
Premises--Operation
Products/Completed Operations Hazard
Contractual Insurance
Underground Hazard
Explosion & Collapse Hazard
Independent Contractor and Subcontractor
Broad Form Property Damage
Personal Injury

c. Automobile liability insurance with minimum combined single limits of \$1,000,000.00 per occurrence. This insurance shall include bodily injury and property damage for the following vehicles:

Owned Vehicles Non-owned Vehicles Hired Vehicles

- d. Umbrella Policy: At the option of the Contractor, primary limits may be less than required, with an umbrella policy providing the additional limits needed. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that the primary and umbrella policies both provide the insurance coverage's herein required. However, any such umbrella policy must have minimum coverage limits of \$3,000,000.00.
- e. The Contractor, at his cost, shall effect and maintain in the names of the County, the Engineer and the Contractor, fire, vandalism and extended coverage insurance (or all-risk, builder's risk insurance if approved by the County), upon the entire structure or structures on which the work of this Contract is to be done and upon all material in or adjacent thereto and intended for use thereon to one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract amount. Such insurance may include a deductible provision if the County consents to such provision; however, the Contractor in such case will be liable for paying to the County the amount of such deduction whenever a claim arises. The loss, if any, is to be made adjustable with and payable to the County as Trustee for whom it may concern. Written evidence of the insurance required herein shall be filed with the County not later than thirty (30) days following the date of the award of the Contract. A copy of the evidence of insurance shall be filed with the Purchasing Manager.
- f. All policies shall name the Pittsylvania County, its officers, agents, and employees & Schwartz & Associates Inc., its officers, agents & employees as additional insured. This coverage shall be reflected on the Certificates of Insurance (including any endorsements or riders thereto) which will be provided to the County (See Appendix C Example of Certificate of Liability Insurance). Each Certificate of Insurance shall require that notice be given thirty (30) days prior to cancellation or material change in the policies to the Purchasing Manager.
- g. The insurance required by this Article shall include contractual liability insurance applicable to the Contractor's obligations under §1.5.
- h. The Contractor shall either (1) require each of his subcontractors to procure and to maintain during the life of his contract "Subcontractor's Insurance" of the type and in the same amounts as specified in the preceding schedule or (2) insure the activities of his subcontractors in his own policy.

1.8 MATTERS OF LAW

1.8.1 AUTHORITY

a. The Purchasing Manager as the designee of the County Manager has the sole responsibility and authority for negotiating, placing, and when necessary modifying each and every invitation to bid, purchase order, or other award issued by the Pittsylvania County. In the discharge of these responsibilities, the Purchasing Manager may be assisted by assigned buyers. No other County officer or employee is authorized to order supplies or services, enter into purchase negotiation, or in any way obligate the government of the Pittsylvania County for an indebtedness. Any purchases contrary to these provisions and authorities shall be void and the County shall not be bound thereby.

b. Any purchase order/contract from this process shall be governed; in all respects whether as to its validity, construction, capacity, performance or otherwise; by the laws of the Commonwealth. Successful bidders providing goods to the County herewith assure the County that they are conforming to the provisions of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, as well as the Virginia Fair Employment Act of 1975, as amended, where applicable and Section 2.2-4311 of the Virginia Public Procurement Act which provides:

1.8.2 ENFORCEMENT

This Agreement and the performance thereof shall be governed by and enforced under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and if legal action by either party is necessary for or with respect to the enforcement of any or all of the terms and conditions hereof, then exclusive venue therefore shall lie in Pittsylvania County, Virginia.

1.8.3 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

During the performance of the contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

- a. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, or national origin, except where religion, sex, or national origin is a bona fide occupational qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the Contractor. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions for this nondiscrimination clause.
- b. The Contractor also shall not discriminate against any handicapped person in violation of any state or federal law or regulation and shall also post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this additional nondiscrimination clause.
- c. The Contractor, in solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, will state that such contractor is an equal opportunity employer.
- d. Notices, advertisements, and solicitations placed in accordance with Federal law, rule or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of meeting the requirements of this section.
- e. The Contractor will include the provisions of the foregoing paragraphs in every subcontract or purchase order over \$10,000 so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.
- f. The Contractor will otherwise comply with all other applicable provisions of local, State, and Federal law.

1.8.4 NON-APPROPRIATION

In the event that sufficient funds are not appropriated by the Council of Pittsylvania County, Virginia; or, if appropriated, are not allocated or available; or, in the event the amounts due hereunder are to be paid with funds given to the County by another private or government entity, and such funds are not sufficient for continuation of this agreement during any fiscal year after the County's first fiscal year; the County may, without breach, upon prior written notice to Contractor, terminate the contract in whole or in part.

1.8.5 NOVATION

The Contractor shall not assign or transfer, whether by Assignment or Novation, any of its rights, duties, benefits, obligations, liabilities, or responsibilities under the Agreement without the written consent of the County; provided, however, that assignments to banks, trust companies or other financial institutions for the purpose of securing a bond may be made without the consent of the County. Assignment or Novation of the Agreement shall not be valid unless the Assignment or Novation expressly provides that the assignment of any of the Contractor's rights or benefits under the Agreement is subject to a prior lien for labor performed, services rendered and materials, tools, and equipment supplied for the performance of the work under the Agreement in favor of all persons, firms, or corporations rendering such labor or services or supplying such materials, tools, and equipment.

1.8.6 OBSERVANCE OF LAWS

The Contractor at all times shall observe and comply with all Federal, State, and County laws, bylaws, ordinances and regulations in any manner affecting the conduct of the work or applying to employees on the project, as well as all orders or decrees which have been promulgated or enacted, by any legal bodies or tribunals having authority or jurisdiction over the work, materials, employees or contract.

1.8.7 PATENTS

The Contractor agrees to indemnify and save harmless the County, and all personnel from all suits and actions of every nature and description brought against them, for or on account of the use of patented appliances, products, or processes, and he shall pay all royalties and charges which are legal and equitable. Evidence of such payment or satisfaction shall be submitted upon request of the County as a necessary requirement in connection with the final execution of any contract in which such patented appliances, products, or processes are used.

1.8.8 PERMITS

The Contractor shall, at his own expense, secure any business or professional licenses, permits or pay any fees required by the Town of Hurt, Pittsylvania County or Commonwealth of Virginia to include securing a business license. For further information, contact Town of Hurt at (434) 608-0554.

1.8.9 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees to:

Provide a drug-free workplace for the contractor's employees

Post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or marijuana is prohibited in the contractor's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.

State in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor that the contractor maintains a drug-free workplace

Include the provisions of the foregoing clauses in every subcontract or purchase order of or over \$10,000, so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.

"Drug-free workplace" means a site for the performance of work done in connection with a specific contract awarded to a contractor in accordance with this chapter, the employees of whom are prohibited from engaging in the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of any controlled substance or marijuana during the performance of the contract.

1.8.10 SUBCONTRACTS

No proposed subcontractor shall be disapproved by the County except for cause. The Contractor shall be as fully responsible to the County for the acts and omissions of his subcontractors, and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by them as he is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by him. The Contractor shall cause appropriate provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts relative to the work to require compliance by each subcontractor with the applicable provisions of the Contract for the improvements embraced in this Contract. Nothing contained in the Contract shall create any contractual relation between any subcontractor and the County.

1.9 SPECIFICATIONS AND PRODUCT DESCRIPTION

1.9.1 When brand names, model numbers, trade names, catalog numbers, or cuts are listed, they are, unless otherwise specified, included for the purpose of furnishing bidders with information concerning the style, type, or kind of article desired and a bidder may offer an article which he certifies to be equal in quality, performance and other essential characteristics. Any available printed material or literature which describes the product being offered for sale shall be included with the bid. The County shall be the sole judge of suitability of substitutes offered. When a formal numbered specification is referred to in this invitation, no deviation will be permitted and the bidder will be required to furnish articles in conformity with that specification.

- 1.9.2 After the execution of the Contract, substitution of equipment other than those named in the Contract will be considered for one reason only:
 - That the equipment or material proposed for substitution is equal or superior in construction, efficiency, durability or maintenance to that named in the contract.
- 1.9.3 To receive consideration, the Contractor's request for substitution must be accompanied by documentary proof of the actual difference in the equipment or material in the form of certified copies of specifications and statement of actual cost difference. Product samples or location of representative installation may be required for submission to receive approval. The County shall receive the full benefit of the saving in cost involved in any substitution.
- 1.9.4 In all cases, the burden of proof that the equipment or material offered for substitution is equal or superior to that named in the Contract shall rest on the Contractor, and unless the proof is satisfactory to the County, the substitution will not be approved.
- 1.9.5 It will be considered that the Contractor, in his Proposal, has contacted manufacturers giving a delivery time which will permit completion of the Project within the specified Contract Time.
- 1.9.6 The Engineer will issue in writing any approved substitutions. In the event the Contractor obtains the Engineer's approval on equipment or materials other than that specified, the Contractor shall, at his own expense, make any changes in the assemblies, structures, or substrates or whatever is necessary to accommodate the substituted equipment or material.
- 1.9.7 In the event that the Engineer is required to provide additional engineering services as a result of substitution of materials or equipment which are not "or equal" by the Contractor, or changes by the contractor in dimension, weight, power requirements, etc., of the equipment and accessories furnished, or if the Engineer is required to examine and evaluate any changes proposed by the Contractor for the convenience of the Contractor, then the Engineer's charges in connection with such additional services shall be charged to the Contractor by the County.
- 1.9.8 Structural design shown on the Contract Drawings is based upon typical weights for major items of equipment as indicated on the contract Drawings and specified. If the equipment furnished exceeds the weights of said equipment, the Contractor shall assume the responsibility for all costs of redesign and for any construction changes required to accommodate the equipment furnished, including the Engineer's expenses in connection herewith.
- 1.9.9 In the event that the Engineer is required to provide additional engineering services as a result of Contractor's errors, omissions, or failure to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, or if the Engineer is required to examine and evaluate any changes proposed by the Contractor solely for the convenience of the Contractor, then the Engineer's charges in connection with such additional services shall be charged to the Contractor by the County.

1.10 JOBSITE SAFETY MEASURES

- 1.10.1 Construction site safety is the responsibility of the Contractor.
- 1.10.2 The Contractor shall comply with all local, state and federal laws and the Occupational Safety and Health Act in protecting the public, the worksite, and adjacent property from damage. The Contractor shall provide all sheeting, shoring, barricades, warning lights, signs, and fences required for this protection.
- 1.10.3 The Contractor shall provide ample sanitary facilities and drinking water for the workers in accordance with State and County health regulations.

1.10.4 EXCAVATION

- a. No more than two hundred (200) feet of ditch may be opened at any one time without prior approval from the Engineer or his representative.
- b. Unless otherwise permitted by the Engineer, all ditches shall be backfilled at the end of each work day with the exception of the pipe laying area.
- c. Ditches left open overnight shall be kept to a minimum, however, any ditches left shall be properly flared or barricaded.
- d. All ditches shall be backfilled and protected for each weekend unless prior approval for leaving a ditch open is obtained from the Engineer or his representative.

1.10.5 SHORING

All trenches and other excavations shall be supported to provide safe working conditions. The US Department of Labor Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) requires that all excavations over five feet deep be sloped, shored, sheeted, braced, or otherwise supported. When soil conditions are unstable, excavations shallower than five (5) feet also must be sloped, supported, or shored. The type and method to be used may vary on each different project and that which will provide the safest working conditions will be utilized.

1.10.6 LIMITATIONS OF WORK AREA

- a. The Contractor shall be limited to a specific area for storage of equipment, supplies, and building materials. This area shall be designated by the County and established during the Pre-construction conference.
- b. Parking area for employees of the Contractor shall be designated in the vicinity of the project, and it shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to require his personnel to park in this designated area and not in any area which may interfere with the normal operations in and around the construction area or with access and use of the facility by the County.

1.11 COMPLETION SCHEDULE

1.11.1 TIME OF COMPLETION

- a. The time of completion for this project shall be (to be specified in the Bid Invitation) consecutive calendar days after the issuance of the "Notice to Proceed" by the Engineer.
- b. The County reserves the right to suspend work in the case of inclement weather.
- c. If the work is delayed by an act, default, or negligence on the part of the County or by approved nonperformance on the part of the Contractor, an equivalent extension of time for completion may be granted by the County when so requested by the Contractor.

1.11.2 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

- a. The County is authorized to deduct and retain out of any monies that may be due or become due to the Contractor under this agreement, the sum of (to be specified in the Bid Invitation) dollars per day, not as a penalty but as liquidated damages for each and every day that the work is not completed beyond the time stipulated in specifications; provided that due account shall be taken of any authorized adjustment of the completion schedule.
- b. Should the Contractor fail to complete the Work on or before the date stipulated for Completion (or such later date as may result from extension of time granted by the County), the Contractor shall pay the County, as liquidated damages, the sum of (to be specified in the Bid Invitation) for each consecutive day that terms of the Contract remain unfulfilled beyond the date allowed by the Contract, which sum is agreed upon as a reasonable and proper measure of damages which the County will sustain by failure of the Contractor to substantially complete the Work within the time as stipulated. Contractor acknowledges that actual damage to County for late completion would be difficult to estimate accurately and that the liquidated damages specified herein represent a reasonable good faith approximation of the County's anticipated damages. In no way shall costs for liquidated damages be construed as a penalty on the Contractor.
- c. The County shall retain from final payment (or any remaining retained percentage otherwise to be paid the Contractor) amounts necessary to compensate the County for liquidated damages for which the Contractor is liable. If the final payment and remaining retained percentage are not sufficient to cover the liquidated damages, the Contractor shall pay the County the damages remaining.

1.12 TRAFFIC CONTROL

1.12.1 The method of controlling the traffic passing through a work zone and all traffic control and street closed signs and barricades shall be in accordance

with the State and Federal Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices and the Virginia Work Area Protection Manual. The Contractor shall not close or excavate within the right-of-way of a street or alley without obtaining the approval of and any required permits from the County.

- 1.12.2 The Contractor shall provide and maintain, at his expense, all signs, cones, stands and flagmen required to control and protect traffic passing through a work zone (note: traffic control may or may not be a separate pay item).
- 1.12.3 When practical, the Contractor shall keep all street intersections open to traffic. When work is perpendicular to the street, the Contractor shall work in no more than one-half (1/2) of the street width, at one time. The first half of work must be completed and the street passable prior to working in the second half.
- 1.12.4 The Contractor shall provide the necessary diversion ditches, dikes or temporary culverts required to prevent mud and debris from being washed onto the streets or property. The Contractor's vehicles shall be kept reasonably clean to prevent mud from being deposited on streets.

1.13 PROPERTY MAINTENANCE AND COORDINATION

- 1.13.1 The Contractor shall notify property owner(s) forty-eight (48) hours prior to working within easements located upon private property in order to coordinate a means of ingress and egress to the work area and determine a storage area for materials.
- 1.13.2 The Contractor shall maintain a safe and passable pedestrian and vehicular entrance to all private or public property. The Contractor shall notify the property owner(s) twelve (12) hours in advance of the blocking of an entrance. The entrance shall not be blocked for more than twelve (12) hours at any time, without approval of the Engineer. Sidewalks shall remain clear and open at all times during the work, unless approved otherwise by the property owner or County.
- 1.13.3 Existing lawn, trees, shrubs, fences, utilities, culverts, walls, walks, driveways, poles, signs, right-of-way monuments, mailboxes and the like shall be protected from damage during the work under this contract. Any damage caused to such items shall be repaired or replaced by the Contractor at the Contractor's expense.
- 1.13.4 Tree and plant roots or branches that may interfere with the work shall be trimmed or cut only with the approval of the property owner. Any trees or plants which are shown to remain and do not interfere with the work but are accidentally damaged by the work shall be repaired or replaced by the Contractor at the Contractor's expense.

1.14 PROGRESS OF WORK

1.14.1 CONFERENCES

Prior to the issuance of a "Notice to Proceed", the Engineer and Contractor, or their duly appointed representatives, shall meet in a pre-construction

conference to organize, schedule, and determine responsibilities for the work as it pertains to this project.

1.14.2 PROGRESS CHARTS

- a. The Contractor shall within five (5) days or within such time as determined by the Engineer, after date of commencement of work, prepare and submit to the Engineer for approval a practicable schedule showing the order in which the Contractor proposes to carry on the work, the date on which he will start the several salient features (including procurement of materials, plans, and equipment) and the contemplated dates for completing the same.
- b. The schedule shall be in the form of a progress chart of suitable scale to indicate appropriately the percentage of work scheduled for completion at any time. The Contractor shall enter on the chart the actual progress at such intervals as directed by the Engineer, and shall immediately deliver to the Engineer three copies thereof. If the Contractor fails to submit a progress schedule within the time herein prescribed, the Engineer may withhold approval of progress payment estimates until such time as the Contractor submits the required progress schedule.

1.14.3 SCOPE OF WORK

The Contractor shall include in his bid price the placing and furnishing of all materials, labor, tools, equipment, traffic control, and incidentals necessary to complete the work in accordance with the plans and specifications and in accordance with all applicable sections of VDOT's *Road & Bridge Specifications*, current edition.

1.14.4 CONTROL OF WORK

- a. The Engineer will not be responsible for Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, and Engineer will not be responsible for Contractor's failure to perform or furnish the work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- b. The Engineer will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of Contractor or of any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or of any other person or organization performing or furnishing any of the Work.
- c. On all questions relating to quantities, the acceptability of materials and equipment, or work, and the interpretation of the Contract Documents, the decision of the Engineer is final and binding, and shall be precedent to any payment under the contract.
- d. All work and material are subject to the inspection and approval of the Engineer. Unless otherwise authorized, work shall be done only in the presence of the Engineer or his authorized representatives. Any work done without proper inspection will be subject to rejection. Inspection of the work shall not relieve the Contractor of the obligation to fulfill all conditions of the contract.
- e. The Engineer may require the Contractor to remove from the work any employee that the Engineer may deem incompetent, careless, or

insubordinate.

- f. Certain items of work may be performed by forces of the County. The Contractor shall cooperate fully in scheduling and coordinating with the Engineer such that no delay will result in the performance of such work. If the Contractor claims that such work delays or causes additional costs, he shall make claims as provided in §1.17 "Work Changes".
- g. The County may award, or may have awarded, contracts to others for other work. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with such other Contractors by scheduling his own work with that to be performed under other contracts as may be directed by the County. The Contractor shall not commit or permit any act, which will interfere with the performance of work by any other Contractor as scheduled. If the Contractor claims that such work delays or causes additional costs, he shall make claims as provided in §1.17 "Work Changes".
- h. Neither the final certificate of payment nor any provision in the contract documents, nor partial or entire occupancy of the premises by the County, shall constitute an acceptance of work not done in accordance with the contract documents or relieve the Contractor of liability in respect to any express warranties or responsibility for faulty materials or workmanship. The Contractor shall remedy any defects in the work and pay for any damage to other work resulting there from, which shall appear within a period of one year from the date of final acceptance of work unless a longer period is specified. The County will give notice of observed defects with reasonable promptness.

1.14.5 RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CONTRACTOR

- a. Any equipment used on this project must be of sufficient design to accomplish every facet of this work and maintained in a satisfactory working condition throughout the time of construction so as not to delay prompt execution of the project.
- b. Any vehicle operated by the Contractor on new pavement or existing pavement remaining in service shall be equipped with pneumatic tires. The Contractor shall take necessary precautions to ensure that the new pavement is not damaged. All damaged areas shall be repaired by the Contractor at his cost, in a manner approved by the County.
- c. The Contractor shall remove and dispose of all excavated material and shall take necessary precautions to prevent soiling of curbs and adjacent areas. All soiled areas shall be cleaned immediately in a manner approved by the County.
- d. The Contractor will be responsible for investigations of subsurface conditions at the project site, and may obtain soil borings at his own expense.
- e. When required by the Engineer, the Contractor shall submit certification that all materials supplied meet the requirements of the specifications.
- f. Trees, shrubbery, fences, poles, and all other property shall be protected unless their removal is shown on the drawings or authorized in writing by

the Engineer. When it is necessary to cut roots and tree branches, such cutting shall be done under the supervision and direction of the Engineer.

g. The Contractor shall protect any work done from disfigurement by vandals, vehicular traffic, or his own employees. Any damaged work must be repaired, if possible, or removed and replaced as directed by the Engineer. Contractor shall protect fresh laid concrete from rainfall.

1.14.6 CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING

- a. The Engineer will furnish, upon request by the Contractor, centerline and benchmarks necessary for the execution of the work. The Contractor shall carefully preserve and protect all center line benchmarks and shall be responsible for their replacement if damaged or destroyed and for any mistakes that may be caused by their loss or disturbance.
- b. The Contractor shall, at his own expense, provide competent engineering survey services and shall provide and maintain accurate, detailed survey work. The Contractor shall be responsible for the coordination of the work and shall give five (5) days notice prior to start of construction and provide a minimum of three (3) days notice in requesting work. After the staking is completed, the Contractor shall be responsible for all restaking due to missing or disturbed stakes.
- c. The Contractor shall use care in protecting existing property irons and monuments adjacent to the work areas. If a property iron or monument must be removed to install new facilities, the Contractor shall be responsible for locating the iron or monument in such a manner that it can be accurately replaced by a registered surveyor after the construction of the new facilities is completed. If a property iron or monument is destroyed by the Contractor, it shall be replaced by a registered surveyor at the Contractor's expense.

1.14.7 WORKING HOURS

Work at the job shall only be performed during the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. unless otherwise approved by the Engineer.

1.14.8 USE OF EXPLOSIVES

Blasting or other use of explosives shall be done in accordance with Federal, State, or Local laws. A special blasting permit <u>must</u> be obtained from the Pittsylvania County.

1.14.9 SUBCONTRACTS

- a. No proposed subcontractor shall be disapproved by the County except for cause.
- b. The Contractor shall be as fully responsible to the County for the acts and omissions of his subcontractors, and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by them as he is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by him.

- c. The Contractor shall cause appropriate provision to be inserted in all subcontracts relative to the work to require compliance by each subcontractor with applicable provisions of the Contract for the improvements embraced in the Contract.
- d. Nothing contained in any agreement shall create any contractual relation between any subcontractor and the County.
- e. Subcontractors shall maintain the proper Virginia registration in accordance with § 1.2.5 and a valid Pittsylvania County business license if one is required.

1.15 REMUNERATION

1.15.1 QUANTITIES

The quantities indicated on the proposal are estimates only and the Contractor shall be paid according to unit prices for work actually performed.

1.15.2 MEASUREMENT OF QUANTITY

- a. All work completed under the Agreement will be measured by the Engineer or his designee in accordance with United States standard measures.
- b. The determination of quantities of items required under the terms of the Agreement or as directed by the Engineer will be made by the Engineer based on measurements taken by him or caused to be taken by him.
- c. Quantities designated to be paid on the basis of "Plan Quantity" (i.e. quantities shown on the contract drawings) will not be measured for payment, but the quantity paid shall be as stated in the bid document.

1.15.3 PAYMENTS TO THE CONTRACTOR

- a. Except as hereinafter provided, the County will pay by the end of the month all bills submitted by the tenth day of that month; otherwise, by the end of the following month. Unless otherwise provided under the terms of this contract, interest shall accrue at the rate of one percent per month.
- b. The County will make payments on estimates approved by the Engineer. The Contractor shall furnish a breakdown of the total contract price showing the amount included therein for each category of the work performed as shown in his proposal for materials stored.
- c. At the option of the Engineer, partial payment up to the estimated value, less retainage, may be allowed for any materials and equipment not incorporated in the work, pursuant to the following conditions:
 - 1. Major equipment items stored off site shall be stored in a bonded warehouse and properly maintained during storage.
 - 2. Equipment or materials stored on the site shall be properly stored,

protected and maintained by the Contractor.

- 3. The Contractor shall submit, with his monthly progress payment request, bills or invoices from each material or equipment supplier indicating actual payment.
- 4. The Contractor shall submit evidence that he has paid for materials or equipment stored and for which the Engineer has authorized partial payment and previous progress payments, prior to submission of the next monthly payment request.
- d. In making payments, five percent (5%) of the estimated amount shall be retained until final completion and acceptance of the contract work. To the extent required by Subsection 11-56.1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, the Contractor shall be given the option to use an escrow account procedure for utilization of such retainage funds as described in that Code section.
- e. All material and work covered by payments shall thereupon become the sole property of the County, but this provision shall not be construed as relieving the Contractor from the sole responsibility for all material and work upon which payments have been made, or the restoration of any damaged work, or as waiving the right of the County to require the fulfillment of all the terms of the contract.
- f. Upon completion, final inspection and acceptance, the retainage shall be paid to the Contractor.
- g. The Contractor, provided all above conditions have been met, has the right to suspend operations after the 30th day following partial billing, if payment has not been received, without forfeiting any of his rights, unless otherwise agreed upon by the County and the Contractor.

1.15.4 CONTRACTOR PAYMENTS TO SUBCONTRACTORS

- a. Within seven (7) days after the receipt of amounts paid to the Contractor by the County for work performed by any subcontractor under this agreement, the Contractor shall either:
 - 1. pay the subcontractor for the proportionate share of the total payment received from the County attributable to the work performed by the subcontractor under this agreement; or
 - notify the County and subcontractor on all amounts owed by the Contractor that remain unpaid after seven (7) days following receipt by the contractor of payment from the County for work performed by the subcontractor's payment with the reason for nonpayment.
- b. The Contractor shall pay interest to any subcontractor on all amounts owed by the Contractor that remain unpaid after seven (7) days following receipt by the contractor of payment from the County for work performed by the subcontractor under this agreement, except for amounts withheld as allowed in subsection a (2) above.

- c. Unless otherwise provided under the terms of this Agreement, interest shall accrue at the rate of one percent per month.
- d. The Contractor shall include in each of its subcontracts a provision requiring each subcontractor to include or otherwise be subject to the same payment and interest requirements with respect to each lower-tier subcontractor.
- e. The Contractor's obligation to pay and interest charged to a subcontractor pursuant to this section may not be construed to be an obligation of the County. No contract modification may be made for the purpose of providing reimbursement for such interest charge. A cost reimbursement claim may not include any amount for reimbursement for such interest charge.

1.16 TERMINATION/STOPPAGES, ETC.

1.16.1 POSSESSION PRIOR TO COMPLETION

- a. Prior to Substantial Completion of the project, the Engineer may request the Contractor in writing to permit him to use a specified part of the project, which he believes he may use without significant interference with construction of the other parts of the project. If Contractor agrees, he will certify to the County that said part of the project is substantially complete and request the Engineer to issue a certificate of Substantial Completion for that part of the project. Within a reasonable time thereafter, the Engineer shall make an inspection of the part of the Project to determine its status of completion.
- b. If the Engineer does not consider that it is substantially complete, the Engineer will notify the Contractor in writing giving his reasons therefore. If Engineer considers that part of the Project is substantially complete, Engineer will execute and deliver a certificate to that effect, fixing the date of Substantial Completion as to that part of the project, attaching thereto a tentative list of items to be completed or corrected before Substantial Completion of the entire project and fixing the responsibility between County and Contractor for maintenance, heat, and utilities as to that part of the project.
- c. The County shall have the right to exclude the Contractor from any part of the project, which the Engineer has so certified to be substantially complete, but the County shall allow the Contractor reasonable access to complete items on the tentative list.

1.16.2 SUSPENSION OF WORK

The work may be suspended by the Engineer when deemed in the best interest of the County.

1.16.3 TERMINATION

a. If the Contractor fails to begin the work under the contract within the time specified, or fails to perform the work with sufficient workmen and equipment or with sufficient materials to insure the completion of said work within the specified time, or shall perform the work in an unsatisfactory manner, or shall neglect or refuse to remove materials or perform anew such work as shall be rejected as defective or unsuitable, or shall discontinue the prosecution of the work, or if the Contractor shall become insolvent or be declared bankrupt, or shall commit any act of bankruptcy or insolvency, or shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or from any other cause whatsoever shall not carry on the work in an acceptable manner, the County shall give notice in writing to the Contractor and his surety of such failure, delay, neglect, refusal, or default.

b. If the Contractor, within a period of seven days after such notice, shall not proceed in accordance therewith, then the County Manager shall, have full power and authority to declare the forfeiture of the contract, and to forfeit the rights of the Contractor. The County Manager at his option may call upon the surety to complete the work in accordance with the terms of this contract or may have the County take over the work, including any or all materials and equipment on the ground as may be suitable and acceptable to the County and may complete the work by or on its own employees, or may enter into a new contract for the completion of the work. All costs and charges incurred by the County, together with the cost of completing the work, shall be deducted from any monies due or which may become due on the contract.

1.17 WORK CHANGES

- 1.17.1 The County, without invalidating any construction contract, and without notice to any surety, may order changes in the work within the general scope of the contract consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions, providing the total amount added or eliminated does not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the total contract price, or \$10,000, whichever is greater. All such changes in the work shall be authorized by change order, and shall be executed under the applicable conditions of the contract documents.
- 1.17.2 The cost or credit to the County resulting from a change in the work shall be determined by unit prices subsequently agreed upon or by mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized, or on the basis of Cost of Work plus a Contractors Fee for overhead and profit as determined below.
- 1.17.3 The term "Cost of Work" means the sum of costs necessarily incurred and paid by Contractor in the proper performance of the work. Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by the County, such costs shall be in amounts no higher than those prevailing in the locality of the Project, shall include only the following items and shall not include any of the costs itemized in § 1.17.4 below.
 - a. Payroll costs for employees in the direct employ of the Contractor in the performance of work under schedules of job classifications agreed upon by the County and the Contractor. Payroll costs for employees not employed full time on the work shall be apportioned on the basis of their time spent on the work. Payroll costs shall include, but not be limited to, salaries and wages plus the cost of fringe benefits, which shall include social security contributions, unemployment, excise and payroll taxes. Workers' or workmen's compensation, health and retirement benefits, bonuses, sick leave, vacation and holiday pay applicable thereto. Such employees shall include superintendents and foremen at the site. The expenses of performing work after regular working hours, on Saturday, Sunday, or legal holidays, shall be included in the above to the extent

authorized by the County.

- b. Cost of all materials and equipment furnished and incorporated in the work, including costs of transportation and storage thereof, and manufacturer's field services required in connection therewith. All trade discounts, rebates, and refunds that are for installed materials and equipment shall accrue to the County, and the Contractor shall make provisions so that they may be obtained. All trade discounts, rebates, and refunds and all returns from the sale of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to the Contractor.
- c. Payments made by the Contractor to Subcontractors for work performed by Subcontractors. All Subcontracts shall be subject to the provisions of the Contract Documents.
- d. Supplemental costs including the following:
 - Cost, including transportation and maintenance, of all materials, supplies, equipment, machinery, appliances, office and temporary facilities at the site and hand tools not owned by the workers, which are consumed in the performance of the work, and cost less market value of such items used but not consumed which remain the property of Contractor.
 - 2. Rentals of all construction equipment and machinery, whether rented from the Contractor or others, shall be negotiated between the Engineer and the Contractor. These rates shall include all fuel, lubricants, insurance, etc. Equipment rental charges shall not exceed the prorated monthly rental rates listed in the current edition of the Compilation of Rental Rates for Construction Distributors. Charges per hour shall be determined by dividing the monthly rates by 176. The rental of any such equipment and machinery shall close when the use thereof is no longer necessary for the work.
 - 3. Sales, consumer, use or similar taxes related to the project, and for which Contractor is liable, imposed by Laws and Regulations.
 - 4. Deposits lost for causes other than negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, and royalty payments and fees for permits and licenses.
- 1.17.4 The term "Cost of the Work" shall not include any of the following:
 - a. Payroll costs and other compensation of Contractor's officers, executives, principals (of partnership and sole proprietorships: general managers, engineers, architect, estimators, attorneys, auditors, accountants, purchasing and contracting agents, expediters, timekeepers, clerks and other personnel employed by Contractor whether at the site or in Contractor's principal or branch office for general administration of the work and not specifically included in the agreed upon schedule of job classifications referred to in §1.17.3a above all of which are to be considered administrative costs covered by the Contractor's Fee.

- b. Expenses of Contractor's principal branch offices other than Contractor's office at the site.
- c. Any part of Contractor's capital expenses, including interest on the Contractor's capital employed for the work and charges against the Contractor for delinquent payments.
- d. Costs due to the negligence of the Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, including but not limited to, the correction of defective work, disposal of materials or equipment wrongly supplied and making good any damage to property.
- e. Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind and the costs of any item not specifically and expressly included in §1.17.3 "c".
- 1.17.5 The Contractor's Fee allowed to the Contractor for overhead and profit shall be based on the following:
 - a. For costs incurred under § 1.17.3a & b, the Contractor's Fee shall be ten percent. Contractor's Fee shall not be applied to payroll taxes, social security contributions or unemployment taxes.
 - b. For costs incurred under § 1.17.3c, any Contractor's Fee shall be five percent.
 - c. No fee shall be payable on the basis of costs itemized under §1.17.3d and 1.17.4.
 - d. The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contract to the County for any such change which results in a net decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease plus a deduction in Contractor's Fee by an amount equal to ten percent of the net decrease; and
 - e. When both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the adjustment in Contractor's Fee shall be computed on the basis of the net change in accordance with this sub-section.
- 1.17.6 The contract time will be extended in an amount equal to time lost due to delays beyond the control of Contractor if a claim is submitted in writing to the Engineer for consideration with the claimant's written statement that the adjustment claimed is the entire adjustment to which the claimant has reason to believe it is entitled as a result of the occurrence of said event. Such delays shall include, but not be limited to, acts of neglect by County or others performing additional work as contemplated and specified elsewhere, or to fires, floods, labor disputes, epidemics, abnormal weather conditions or acts of God. No claim for an adjustment in Contract Time will be valid if not submitted in accordance with the requirements of this paragraph.
- 1.17.7 Should concealed conditions encountered in the performance of the work below the surface of the ground or hidden in existing structures be at variance with the conditions indicated by the contract documents, the contract price may be equitably adjusted by change order upon claim by either party and

- approval of the other party, made within twenty (20) days after the first observance of the conditions.
- 1.17.8 The Contractor shall promptly, and before such conditions are disturbed, notify the Engineer in writing of: (a) subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing materially from those indicated in this contract, or (b) unknown physical conditions at the site, of an unusual nature, differing materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in this contract.
- 1.17.9 The Engineer shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if he finds that such conditions do so materially differ and cause an increase or decrease in the Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, performance of this contract, an equitable adjustment shall be made and the contract modified in writing accordingly. Any claim of the Contractor for adjustment hereunder shall not be allowed unless he has given notice as above required; or unless the Engineer grants a further period of time before the date of final payment under the contract.

1.18 UTILITY MAINTENANCE AND COORDINATION

- 1.18.1 Before the work is started, the Contractor shall notify all companies, corporations, municipalities and individuals who own utilities on the construction site, in the right of way or immediately adjacent to the construction area of the work to be performed. The Contractor shall arrange to have the various utilities located and to have them removed or relocated as required, or to determine the method of protection acceptable to the respective utility owner, if the method of protection is not specified hereinafter. Any cost incurred with removing or relocating utilities shall be borne by the Contractor unless indicated otherwise.
- 1.18.2 The location of existing utilities shown on the drawings was taken in part from records and in part from field surveys, and may not represent exact location. The Contractor shall excavate to locate buried utilities far enough in advance of pipeline laying to allow for adjustments in any pipe laying both horizontally and vertically.
- 1.18.3 The work shall be coordinated and performed in a manner so that all existing fire hydrants, without exception, shall be accessible at any time during the work.
- 1.18.4 The Contractor shall maintain the existing streams, ditches, drainage structures, culverts and flows at all times during the work. The Contractor shall pay for all personal injury and property damage, which may occur as a result of failing to facilitate drainage.
- 1.18.5 The Contractor shall ascertain the exact location of each existing utility that may interfere with the work. The Contractor may obtain field utility locations by calling "Miss Utility" (1-800-552-7001) forty-eight (48) hours prior to working in the vicinity of existing utilities. If the utilities fail to locate, a second call shall be made providing an additional three (3) hour notice.
- 1.18.6 The Contractor shall repair or replace any existing sanitary sewer or storm drain utility damaged or misaligned during or due to the work. All other

- utilities shall be repaired or replaced by the respective Utility Company(s) at the expense of the Contractor.
- 1.18.7 The Contractor shall coordinate all work within the vicinity of the existing utilities with the respective Utility Company. The work shall be conducted in a manner to avoid unnecessary service interruption and in accordance with the rules and regulations of the respective Utility Company.
- 1.18.8 When the work is approaching an existing utility or structure that may be in conflict with, or connected to, the work; the Contractor shall excavate test pits to verify the location or elevation of the existing utility or structure. By taking this precaution the Contractor may adjust the work or have the existing utility relocated as necessary. Failure to take such precautions may result in the Contractor adjusting the work or having the existing utility relocated, at the Contractor's expense.
- 1.18.9 When the existing utilities cross the trench excavation, they shall be adequately supported and protected from damage due to the work as required, specified or directed. All methods for supporting and maintaining the utilities shall be subject to the approval of the respective Utility Company and the County. Any utilities removed as part of the work, and not indicated to be removed or abandoned, shall be restored using materials and installation equal to the utilities' standards.
- 1.18.10 The Contractor shall exercise care to insure that the grade and alignment of the existing utility be maintained and that no joints or connections are disturbed. Backfill shall be carefully placed and compacted to prevent the future damage or settlement to the existing utility.
- 1.18.11 The Contractor shall maintain sewage flow at all times by pumping and/or diversion, or other means acceptable to the Engineer. At no time shall the Contractor allow raw sewage to flow out of the sewerage system to adjacent land or waterways. At no time shall the Contractor cause sewage to surcharge the sewerage system such that sewage backs up into any service connection. In the event such backup occurs, the Contractor shall correct and pay for all damage caused.
- 1.18.12 No water pipes shall pass through or come in contact with any part of a sewer or storm drain manhole.

1.19 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

- 1.19.1 Environmental protection considerations for the purpose of any County construction consist of, but are not limited to, the following factors: natural resources including air, water and land; solid waste disposal; noise; control of toxic substances, hazardous materials and radiation; the presence of chemical, physical and biological elements and agents which adversely effect or alter ecological balances; degradation of the aesthetic use of the environment; impact on daily activities such as traffic, and historical, archeological and cultural resources.
- 1.19.2 The Contractor shall provide and maintain during the life of the contract, the environmental protection as defined herein. His operation shall comply with all Federal, State, and County laws, ordinances and regulations pertaining to

the provisions of this and various other sections of this specification shall also be his responsibility.

The Contractor shall not use equipment from which factory installed antipollution and noise control devices have been removed or rendered ineffective through lack of proper maintenance.

- 1.19.3 The Engineer will notify the Contractor in writing of any noncompliance with the aforementioned Federal, State, or County laws or regulations. Such notice, when delivered to the Contractor or his authorized representative at the site of the work, shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose. The Contractor shall, after receipt of such notice, immediately inform the Engineer of proposed corrective action and take such action as may be approved. If the Contractor fails or refuses to comply promptly, the Engineer may issue an order stopping all or part of the work until satisfactory corrective action has been taken. No part of the time lost due to any such stop orders shall be made the subject of a claim for extension of time or for excess costs or damages by the Contractor.
- 1.19.4 It is intended that the natural resources within the project boundaries and outside the limits of permanent work performed under this contract be preserved in their existing condition or be restored to an equivalent of the existing condition, as approved by the Engineer, upon completion of the work. The Contractor shall confine his construction activities to areas defined by the work schedule, plans, and specifications.
- 1.19.5 Except in areas indicated to be cleared, the Contractor shall not remove, cut, deface, injure, or destroy trees, shrubs and vegetation without special permission from the Engineer. No ropes, cables, or guys shall be fastened to or attached to any existing nearby trees for anchorage unless specifically authorized by the Engineer. Where such use is permitted, the Contractor shall be responsible for any damage resulting from such use.
- 1.19.6 At all times, special measures shall be taken to prevent oil or other hazardous substances from entering the ground, drainage areas and local bodies of water in such quantities as to affect normal use, aesthetics or produce a measurable ecological impact on the area.
- 1.19.7 Any and all items having apparent historical or archeological interest, which are discovered in the course of construction activities, shall be carefully preserved in place and reported immediately to the Engineer for determination of action to be taken. Work in the immediate area shall be halted and the artifacts or other evidence shall be protected from all damage, including that resulting from the elements, vandalism, and the effects of excavation, demolition, removal and construction operations until such time as qualified officials are able to conduct appropriate investigations. Work in the immediate area shall not proceed until authorization to proceed is obtained from the Engineer. Any such evidence or artifacts found during construction operations or subsequent investigations required by this section shall be delivered into the custody of the County and shall not become the property of the Contractor.
- 1.19.8 The Contractor shall comply with the *Toxic Substance Control Act*, PL 94-469, (TSCA) which includes, but is not limited to, the regulation of Polychlorinated biphenyl's (PCBs). Since these chemicals are used in some

existing insulation, existing fixed and vehicular transformers on some railroads, the Contractor shall assure proper marking, handling, and disposal of any PCBs in accordance with PL 94-469 and the implementing regulations of 40 C.F.R. 761. In order to avoid any inadvertent violation of the law the following rules shall apply:

- a. No Polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) chemical substance, mixture, equipment, container, sealant, coating, or dust control agent will be used a part of the project except as in accordance with all provisions of the *Toxic Substance Control Act* (PL 94-469) as interpreted by the rules and regulations of 40 C.F.R. 761.
- 1.19.9 Trash shall be picked up and placed in containers, which shall be emptied on a regular schedule. All handling and disposal shall be so conducted as to prevent contamination of the site and other areas and shall not be disposed of in wetlands and shall not be burned. On completion, the area shall be left clean and re-vegetated as described in § 01565. Rubbish and debris shall be transported off the construction site and disposed of by the Contractor in a manner that complies with Federal, State, and County requirements. A permit or license and the location of the disposal area shall be provided prior to transporting any material off the project area. Waste materials shall not be burned within the project area.
- 1.19.10 Dust shall be kept down at all times including non-working hours, weekends, and holidays. Soil at the site, haul roads, and other areas disturbed by the Contractor's operations and materials stockpiled for the project shall be sprinkled or treated with dust suppressers or covered as to control dust. No dry power brooming will be permitted. Vacuuming, wet mopping, wet sweeping or wet power brooming shall be used instead. Only wet cutting of concrete, concrete and asphalt will be permitted.
- 1.19.11 The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the *National Emission Standards for Asbestos* (40 C.F.R. 61 Subpart B).
- 1.19.12 The Contractor shall inspect all vehicles for dirt prior to their leaving the construction site; dirt, soil, and rubble likely to be dislodged during transit shall be removed from the trucks and other vehicles prior to leaving the site. He shall insure that all equipment transporting material that may become airborne is covered.

1.20 EROSION CONTROL

- 1.20.1 The erosion control system shall protect adjacent properties, shall be in accordance with the *Virginia Erosion and Sediment Control Handbook* and County ordinances, and shall be approved by the Engineer. All erosion control measures shall be placed prior to commencement of grading. All elements of the erosion control system shall be sized and designed in accordance with the criteria specified in the handbook. The numbers in parentheses refer to standard and specification number in the handbook (Virginia).
- 1.20.2 Temporary measures shall be applied throughout the construction of the project to control erosion and to minimize siltation of adjacent property, streets, drainage ditches, storm drains and waterways. The Contractor, as a minimum, shall employ all erosion control measures indicated on the

drawings and specified herein. Disturbed areas that are to be left unfinished for more than 30 days shall be seeded temporarily within seven days of completion of grading operations.

- a. Stockpiled material shall be surrounded at the base with a temporary sediment barrier. Slopes of stockpiled material shall not exceed 2 to 1
- b. Vehicles leaving the construction site shall be cleaned to remove mud prior to entrance onto public rights of way.
- c. The Contractor shall be responsible for weekly inspection of temporary erosion control system to insure maximum effectiveness of the protective measures. Any damaged areas of the erosion control system shall be immediately repaired.
- 1.20.3 Minimum required measures (numbers from erosion handbook, 1992 Edition):
 - a. Silt fence (3.05)
 - b. Storm drain inlet protection (3.07)
 - c. Temporary seeding (3.31)
 - d. Temporary Construction Entrance (3.02)
- 1.20.4 In the event the Contractor repeatedly fails to satisfactorily control erosion and siltation, the County reserves the right to employ outside assistance or to use its own forces to provide the erosion control measures indicated and specified. The cost of such work, plus related engineering costs, will be deducted from monies due the Contractor for other work.

1.20.5 RIPRAP

- a. Materials: Riprap shall be dry riprap, Class II, except where Class III is indicated, as defined in Section 414 of the Virginia Department of Transportation Road and Bridge Specifications Latest Edition. The diameter of the largest stone shall not exceed 2.75 feet for Class III Riprap, and 2.25 feet for Class II Riprap.
- b. Riprap shall be placed in accordance with Section 414. The riprap shall be placed so that it produces a dense well-graded mass of stone with a minimum of voids. Riprap shall be placed on filter fabric. Filter fabric shall be Trevira 1127, Mirafi 700X, or equal, installed in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions. The desired distribution of stones throughout the mass may be obtained by selective loading at the quarry, controlled dumping of successive loads during final placing, or by a combination of these methods. The riprap shall be placed to its full thickness in one operation. The riprap shall not be placed in layers. The riprap shall not be placed by dumping into chutes or similar methods, which are likely to cause segregation of the various stone sizes. Care should be taken not to dislodge the underlying material when placing the stones.
- c. The finished slope shall be free of pockets of small stone or clusters of large stones. Hand placing may be necessary to achieve the required grades and a good distribution of stone sizes. Final thickness of the

riprap blanket shall be within plus or minus 1/4 of the specified thickness. The thickness shall be 2.75 feet for Class III riprap, and 2.25 feet for Class II riprap.

1.20.6 Where indicated, soil stabilization mat shall be provided in ditches in accordance with the details on the drawings and VDOT EC-3B. The fabric shall conform to VDOT Section 244 and shall be installed in accordance with VDOT Section 606 and the manufacturer's recommendations. The soil stabilization mat shall be Miramat 2400B by Mirafi, or equal, as approved by VDOT, for velocities of 7 to 10 feet per second. The mat shall extend under the riprap at channel ends per manufacturer's recommendations.

Appendix A: Sample Agreement PITTSYLVANIA COUNTY

THIS AGREI Pittsylvania (Cour	NT, made this day of, 20, by and between the nty, Virginia, hereinafter called the County, and, hereinafter called the Contractor.
WITNESSET		That the County and the Contractor, for the consideration hereinafter named, agree as follows:
ARTICLE 1.	and in a spe	e Contractor agrees to furnish all materials, labor and equipment necessary, it to perform all the work for the project IFB 20-21-110, "" accordance with terms and provisions of this agreement and all ecifications prepared by, referred to and incorporated ein by reference.
ARTICLE 2.	late give cor Liq hur spe five	e Contractor agrees that the work under this Agreement will commence not er than ten (10) calendar days after receipt of written Notice to Proceed is en by the County to the Contractor. All work under this contract will be impleted and ready for final payment on or before October 7, 2022. Suidated damages shall be assessed in the amount of one thousand, five indred dollars (\$1,500.00) for each calendar day that expires after the time excified for Completion. Further, Contractor shall pay Owner one thousand, is hundred dollars (\$1,500.00) for each calendar day that expires after the expecified for Final Completion
ARTICLE 3.	sur doll in t tha foll	e County agrees to pay Contractor for the performance of the contract the n of
	u.	all bills submitted by the tenth day of that month; otherwise by the end of the following month.
	b.	The County will make payments on estimates approved by the Engineer. The Contractor shall furnish, for approval, a breakdown of the total contract price showing the amount included herein for each category of work performed. This breakdown, modified where directed by the Engineer will be used as a basis for preparing partial estimates and establishing progress payments.
	C.	All materials and work covered by payments whether incorporated in the Project or not shall become the sole property of the County, but this provision shall not be construed as relieving the Contractor from the sole responsibility for all material and work upon which payments have been made, or the restoration of any damaged work, or as waiving the right of the County to Require the fulfillment of all the terms of this contract.

- d. At the option of the Engineer, partial payment up to the estimated value, less retainage, may be allowed for any materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work, pursuant to the following conditions:
 - 1. Major equipment items stored off site shall be stored in a bonded warehouse and properly maintained during storage.
 - 2. Equipment or materials stored on the site shall be properly stored, protected, and maintained.
 - 3. For any partial payment the Contractor shall submit, with his monthly progress payment from each material or equipment manufacturer, bills or invoices indicating actual material cost.
 - 4. Contractor shall submit evidence that he has paid for materials or equipment stored and for which the Engineer has authorized partial payment and previous progress payments, prior to submission of the next monthly payment request.
- e. Upon completion, final inspection and acceptance, the final payment, including retainage, shall be paid to the Contractor.
- f. The Contractor, provided all above conditions have been met, has the right to suspend operations after the 30th day following partial billing, if payment has not been received, without forfeiting any of his rights, unless otherwise agreed upon by the County or its representative and the Contractor.
- g. In making payments, there shall be retained five percent (5%) of the estimated amount until final completion and acceptance of the contract work.

ARTICLE 4. During the performance of this Agreement, the Contractor agrees as follows:

- a. Within seven (7) days after the receipt of amounts paid to the Contractor by the County for work performed by any subcontractor under this agreement, the Contractor shall either:
 - 1. Pay the subcontractor for the proportionate share of the total payment received from the County attributable to the work performed by the subcontractor under this agreement; or
 - 2. Notify the County and the subcontractor on all amounts owed by the Contractor that remain unpaid after seven (7) days following receipt by the Contractor of payment from the County for work performed by the subcontractor's payment with the reason for nonpayment.
- b. The Contractor shall pay interest to any subcontractor on all amounts owed by the Contractor that remain unpaid after seven (7) days following receipt by the Contractor of payment from the County for work performed by the subcontractor under this agreement, except for amounts withheld as allowed in subsection a (2) above.
- c. Unless otherwise provided under the terms of this Agreement, interest shall accrue at the rate of one percent per month.

- d. The Contractor shall include in each of its subcontracts a provision requiring each subcontractor to include or otherwise be subject to the same payment and interest requirements with respect to each lower-tier subcontractor.
- e. The Contractor's obligation to pay and interest charged to a subcontractor pursuant to this section may not be construed to be an obligation of the County. No contract modification may be made for the purpose of providing reimbursement for such interest charge. A cost reimbursement claim may not include any amount for reimbursement for such interest charge.

ARTICLE 5. During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

- a. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, or national origin, except where religion, sex, or national origin is a bona fide occupational qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the Contractor. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees or applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
- b. The Contractor, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, will state that such Contractor is an equal opportunity employer.
- c. Notices, advertisements, and solicitations placed in accordance with federal law, rule or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of meeting the requirements of this section.
- d. The Contractor will otherwise comply with all other applicable provisions of local, state, and Federal law.

ARTICLE 6.	The County and the Contractor hereby agree that the Contract specifications,				
	prepared by	(with the exception of the drawings) are			
	attached hereto, and are incorporated herein and made a part hereof by				
	reference as if fully set forth	and include			
	the following:				

Contract Drawings
Performance Bond
Labor & Material Bond
Certificate of Insurance
Contract Documents

ARTICLE 7. Notwithstanding any other provision of this contract the total obligation of the County shall not exceed \$_____ and no increase shall be made to this amount except by a written amendment executed by officials of the County and Contractor who are authorized by law to execute agreements.

In the event that sufficient funds are not appropriated by the Council of the Pittsylvania County, Virginia; or, if appropriated, are not allocated or available; or, in the event the amounts due hereunder are to be paid with funds given to the County by another private or government entity, and such funds are not sufficient for continuation of this agreement during any fiscal year after the County's first fiscal year; the County may, without breach, upon prior written notice to the Contractor, terminate this Agreement in whole or in part.

- ARTICLE 8. It is the intent and understanding of the parties to this Agreement that each and every provision of law required to be inserted in this Agreement shall be and is inserted herein. Furthermore, it is hereby stipulated that if through mistakes and otherwise, any such provision is not inserted in correct form, then this Agreement shall upon application of either party, be amended by such insertion so as to comply strictly with the law and without prejudice to the rights of either party.
- ARTICLE 9. This Agreement and the performance hereof shall be governed by and enforced under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and if legal action by either party is necessary for or with respect to the enforcement of any or all of the terms and conditions hereof, then exclusive venue therefore shall lie in the Pittsylvania County, Virginia.
- ARTICLE 10. The County and the Contractor, for themselves, their successors, executors, administrators and assignees hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants herein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, these parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and year first above written in two (2) counterparts, each of which is to be deemed to be an original agreement.

PITTSYLVANIA COUNTY, VIRGINIA

			(SEAL)	
BY:		ATTEST:		
	Purchasing Manager		County Clerk	
*****	********	*********	**********	****
CON	TRACTOR			
BY:		ATTEST:		
	President		Secretary	
			(SEAL)	

NOTICE OF AWARD
PITTSYLVANIA COUNTY
TO:
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
The COUNTY has considered the Bid Proposal submitted by you for the above described WORK in response to its
You are hereby notified that your BID has been accepted in the amount of \$
The formal contract will be sent to you shortly; you are requested to execute the Agreement and furnish any required certificates of insurance within ten (10) calendar days from the receipt of the contract.
If you fail to execute said Agreement and to furnish said documents within ten (10) days from the receipt of the contract, said COUNTY will be entitled to consider all your rights arising out of the COUNTY'S acceptance of your BID as abandoned. The COUNTY will be entitled to such other rights as may be granted by law.
You are required to return an acknowledged copy of this NOTICE OF AWARD to the COUNTY.
Dated this day of, 20
By: Purchasing Manager
ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE
Receipt of the above NOTICE OF AWARD is hereby
acknowledged by
, this the
day of, 20
By:

Title:

NOTICE TO PROCEED

TO:	CONTRACTOR:
	ADDRESS:
FROM:	Purchasing Manager
OWNER:	Pittsylvania County, VA
PROJEC1	Γ:
Contract A	Amount \$
calendar of work under completed accordance completed to Proceed The liquidations and, weekends	actor agrees that the work under this contract will commence not later than ten (10) days after receipt of written Notice to Proceed is given by County to the Contractor. All er Phase I of this contract will be substantially complete on or before, and and ready for final payment on or before, I Damages: The Contractor agrees to commence work and complete the project in the with the time period set forth in the written "Notice to Proceed". The project shall be donor before This is a "Fixed Completion Date" Contract with the "Fixed on Date" being (day project). The effective date of the "Notice d" will be ated damages for delay beyond the allotted time for completion of this project shall be One Five Hundred and no/100 Dollars (\$1,500) for each consecutive calendar day, including and holidays, that the work remains incomplete. The contractor shall be required to pay a d Damage in the sum of \$1,500.00 per day for each consecutive calendar day that he goes ime limit.
Pittsylvani	ia County, Virginia
Date:	

APPENDIX B

PITTSYLVANIA COUNTY, VIRGINIA

ESCROW AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made this	day of	, 20, by and
between the Pittsylvania County, Virginia, (County); and	
		, (Contractor); and Peoples Bank,
(Bank), and		, (Surety) provides:
ARTICLE 1. The County and the C Pittsylvania County Project IFB #		" ("the contract").
hereunder or the release of funds from esc performance by the Contractor.		

- ARTICLE 2. In order to assure full and satisfactory performance by the Contractor of its obligations under the contract, the County hereby retains certain amounts otherwise due the Contractor. The Contractor has, with the approval of the County, elected to have these retained amounts held in escrow by the Bank. This agreement sets forth the terms of the escrow. The Bank shall not be deemed a party to, bound by, or required to inquire into the terms of, the contract or any other instrument or agreement between the County and the Contractor.
- ARTICLE 3. The County shall from time to time, pursuant to its contract, pay the Bank amounts retained by it under the contract. Except as to amounts actually withdrawn from escrow by the County, the Contractor shall look solely to the Bank for the payment of funds retained under the contract and paid by the County to the Bank.

The risk of loss by diminution of the principal of any funds invested under the terms of this contract shall be solely upon the Contractor.

Funds held by the Bank pursuant to this Escrow Agreement shall not be subject to levy, garnishment, attachment, lien, or other process whatsoever. Contractor agrees not to assign, pledge, discount, sell, or otherwise transfer or dispose of his interest in the escrow account or any part thereof, except to the Surety.

- ARTICLE 4. Upon receipt of checks or warrants drawn by the County Treasurer and made payable to it as escrow agent, the Bank shall promptly notify the Contractor, negotiate the same and deposit the proceeds in an interest-bearing savings account.
- ARTICLE 5. Upon receipt of a direction signed by the Director of Finance or the Purchasing Manager of the Pittsylvania County, the Bank shall pay the principal of the fund, or any specified amount thereof, to the Pittsylvania County. Such payment shall be made in cash as soon as is practicable after receipt of the direction.
- ARTICLE 6. Upon receipt of a direction signed by the Director of Finance or Purchasing Manager of the Pittsylvania County, the Bank shall pay and deliver the principal of the fund, or any specified amount thereof, to the Contractor, in cash and delivery shall be made as soon as is practicable after receipt of the direction.

ARTICLE 7. For its services hereunder, the Bank shall be entitled to a reasonable fee in accordance with its published schedule of fees or as may be agreed upon by the Bank and the Contractor. Such fee and any other costs of administration of this Agreement shall be paid from the income earned upon the escrow fund and, if such income is not sufficient to pay the same, by the Contractor.

ARTICLE 8. The net income earned and received upon the principal of the escrowed fund shall be paid over to the Contractor in quarterly or more frequent installments. Until so paid or applied to pay the Bank's fee or any other costs of administration, such income shall be deemed a part of the principal of the fund.

ARTICLE 9. The Surety undertakes no obligation hereby but joins in this Agreement for the sole purpose of acknowledging that its obligations as surety for the Contractor's performance of the contract are not affected hereby.

WITNESS the following signatures, all as of the day and year first above written.

PIT	TSYLVANIA COUNTY, VIRGINIA
Ву:	
	Purchasing Manager
****	***************************************
<u>COI</u>	NTRACTOR
Ву:	
	President
****	***************************************
PEC	OPLE'S BANK
Ву:	
****	***************************************



APPENDIX C - EXAMPLE

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

RODUCER	emen			CONTACT NAME:		
				PHONE (A/C, No, Ext); E-MAIL ADDRESS:	FAX (A/C, No)	
					SURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE	NAIC #
				INSURER A :		
SURED				INSURER 8 :		
				INSURER C :		
				INSURER D :		
				INSURER E :		
				INSURER F :		
		ATE NUME		200000000000000000000000000000000000000	REVISION NUMBER:	
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY RECERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY BE EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH	QUIRE PERTA POLIC	EMENT, TER AIN, THE IN: CIES LIMITS SUBR	RM OR CONDITION (SURANCE AFFORD)	of any contract Ed by the policie		O WHICH THIS
GENERAL LIABILITY	INSR	WVD	POLICY NUMBER	(MM/DOM TTT)	EACH OCCURRENCE \$	
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY					DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Ea occurrence) \$	
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR					MED EXP (Any one person) \$	
					PERSONAL & ADV INJURY S	
					GENERAL AGGREGATE \$	
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER					PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG \$	
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY		\neg			COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident) \$	
ANY AUTO					BODILY INJURY (Per person) \$	
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED					BODILY INJURY (Per accident) \$	
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS NON-OWNED AUTOS					PROPERTY DAMAGE \$ (Per accident)	
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS					\$	
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR					EACH OCCURRENCE \$	
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE					AGGREGATE \$	
DED RETENTION\$					\$	
WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY					WC STATU- OTH- TORY LIMITS ER	
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE	N/A				E.L. EACH ACCIDENT \$	
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? (Mandatory in NH)	```				E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE \$	
If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below					E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT \$	
ESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICL	ES (A	ttach ACORD 1	01, Additional Remarks	Schedule, if more space i	is required)	
IFB Project name, Pittsylvania Pittsylvania County & Schwartz & Associ			ers, agents and em	nployees are named	d as additional insured.	
				CANCELLATION	<u> </u>	
ERTIFICATE HOLDER						
ERTIFICATE HOLDER				THE EXPIRATIO	THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANC IN DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE IITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.	

ACORD 25 (2010/05)

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

INDEX

SECTION 2

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

		<u>PAGE NUMBERS</u>
A.	LOCATION OF WORK	2-1
В.	DESCRIPTION OF WORK	2-1
C.	SIGNS FOR PROJECT	2-1
D.	FIELD OFFICE	2-1
E.	SEQUENCE OF WORK, TIME FOR COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES AND DISINCENTIVES	2-1 - 2-2
F.	WATER FOR REPAIRS AND TESTING	2-2
G.	CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE	2-2
Н.	REMOVAL OF EXISTING MATERIAL	2-3
I.	MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC	2-3 - 2-4
J.	PROJECT SIGNS	2-5

SECTION 2 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS

A. LOCATION OF WORK:

The work to be performed under this agreement shall be performed on the "PROPOSED BRIDGE REPAIR OF PEDESTRIAN SUSPENSION BRIDGE – PITTSYLVANIA WAYSIDE PARK OVER SYCAMORE CREEK".

B. <u>DESCRIPTION OF WORK:</u>

These Specifications, Special Provisions, and Drawings shall cover the furnishing of all materials, labor, tools, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the work as shown on the plans and described in these Specifications and Special Provisions including any changes deemed necessary by the Engineer. Payment will only be made for those pay items in pay units given on the bid proposal form.

This work shall be completed in strict accordance with the Drawings, Specifications, and the Virginia Department of Transportation Road and Bridge Specifications, 2020.

C. SIGNS FOR PROJECT:

The Contractor will be responsible for the fabrication of all signs for traffic control. The contractor will be responsible for fabrication and erection of signs as described in paragraph K, page 2-5.

D. FIELD OFFICE:

No field office shall be required for this project; however, the Contractor shall have a telephone on the project (either in a trailer or in a vehicle) at all times during normal working hours. This phone shall be placed and paid for at the Contractor's expense and shall be available to the Owner and Engineer for usage.

E. <u>SEQUENCE OF WORK, TIME FOR COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES:</u>

The Contractor shall schedule his work to comply with the sequence of operations shown on the contract drawings. The Contractor agrees to commence work and complete the project in accordance with the time period set forth in the written "Notice to Proceed". The project shall be completed on or before October 7, 2022. The Contractor shall complete the work within 145 consecutive calendar days, once work has started. This is a "Fixed Completion Date" Contract with the "Fixed Completion Date" being 145 consecutive calendar days after the effective date of the "Notice to Proceed". The effective date of the "Notice to Proceed" will be May 16, 2022.

The liquidated damages for delay beyond the allotted time for completion of this project shall be One thousand, Five Hundred and no/100 Dollars (\$1,500) for each consecutive calendar day, including weekends and holidays, that the work remains incomplete. The contractor shall be required to pay a Liquidated Damage in the sum of \$1,500.00 per day for each consecutive calendar day that he goes over this time limit.

F. WATER FOR REPAIRS AND TESTING:

Water required for these repairs will be provided to the Contractor free of charge. Water service will be provided for the Contractor's use in obtaining water for this project. The location of the water service will be determined by the Engineer.

The Contractor will be required to furnish hoses fittings and incidentals that may be necessary. The County Utilities Division shall be the sole operator of the water service. One week's notice shall be required from contractor prior to providing the water service.

G. <u>CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE:</u>

The contractor shall submit for review, a detailed construction schedule prior to beginning the project. The Owner shall be notified in advance of any major changes in the Construction Schedule as the project progresses. In order to assist the Engineer with Project Staffing Requirements for the following week, the contractor shall provide the Engineer on each Friday, with a detailed work schedule for the following week.

The contractor shall provide the Engineer with at least a 72-hour notice for the following items: 1) dismantle and remove portion of existing structure, 2) furnish and install new suspension cable and floorbeam hanger system, 3) replace timber floorbeams, stringers, decking and rail system and, 4) repoint masonry joints. The Contractor may be charged for additional costs of inspections when material and workmanship are found not to be ready for inspection at the time the Contractor calls for inspection.

H. REMOVAL OF EXISTING MATERIAL:

Care shall be taken during all operations to prevent material from falling into the waterway or roadway or sidewalk areas, damaging utility lines attached to or adjacent to the structure.

I. MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC:

1. Maintenance of Traffic for repair shall be carried out in the following manner:

All work shall be scheduled and performed in such a manner as to provide a minimum of interference and maximum protection to pedestrian traffic and workmen.

2. Temporary bridge closures required of the Contractor and all costs associated shall be borne by the Contractor.

The Contractor shall furnish, at his expense, all pedestrian traffic control devices associated with the signs such as warning lights, flags, cones or drums.

3. General:

The Contractor shall develop and submit a pedestrian traffic control plan to the Engineer for review and approval. The plan shall utilize warning lights, flags, cones and/or drums to redirect pedestrians away from the bridge structure for the entire time the bridge remains closed.

The Contractor shall furnish, install and maintain amber warning lights at all locations necessary for the control and protection of pedestrian traffic. Amber warning lights shall be battery-powered lights conforming to the Institute Transportation Engineers (ITE) Standard for Flashing and Steady Burned Barricade Warning Lights.

The Contractor shall provide the services of properly trained, clothed and equipped flagmen at such locations and for such periods as necessary for the control and protection of vehicular and pedestrian traffic.

The Contractor shall maintain the structural integrity and alignment of safety devices at all times, and shall maintain reflectorized surfaces and warning lights in a clean and visible condition at all times. Safety devices shall be inspected at least daily by the Contractor and any deficiencies shall be immediately corrected by the Contractor. The Contractor shall temporarily cover existing signs as directed by the Engineer.

The Contractor shall take adequate precautions to prevent excavated material, paper, polyethylene, sand or other debris from being spilled or blown onto Sycamore Creek throughout the duration of this project. Should any material get onto Sycamore Creek, the Contractor shall immediately stop work and have it removed. The Engineer may stop work, if conditions warrant, due to blowing sand.

The Contractor will be allowed to store construction equipment and materials overnight on the right of way provided such equipment materials are stored behind concrete traffic barriers. Stored equipment and materials shall be promptly removed when no longer required or as directed by the Engineer. Special care must be taken not to damage the shrubbery, flowers, grass, etc., at the project sites. Damages shall be corrected by Contractor, at Contractor's expense, as directed by the Engineer including re-seeding damaged areas.

All laydown areas shall be approved by the Contractor and Engineer prior to use.

The Contractor shall cover all temporary signs when not in use.

At the completion of the project, the Contractor will remove all signs, sign posts, barrels, and cones from the project.

J. PROJECT SIGNS

One (1) clear and legible project sign (as shown below) shall be provided on the project at each bridge site by the Contractor as soon as he commences work and mobilizes his forces. The signs shall be erected in an appropriate place as determined by the Engineer. Each sign shall contain the following information and meet the following requirements.

- a. Dimensions shall not be less than two (2) feet by three (3) feet.
- b. Lettering shall not be less than one (1) inch tall and one-half (1/2) inch wide.
- c. It shall list Contractor's name.
- d. It shall list who work is performed for.
- e. Phone number of Contractor.
- f. Who to contact in case of emergency and phone number of such person.
- g. The sign shall be constructed of a sturdy and durable material.
- h. Sign or signs shall be placed in such a manner as to be clearly recognizable by the public.

Project signs and their locations shall be approved by the Engineer.

The Contractor shall maintain these signs for the duration of the contract and dispose of them after completion. If these signs become deteriorated and the Engineer decides new signs are needed, the Contractor shall furnish them also. There shall be no separate payment for this item.

INDEX

SECTION 3

SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS

PAGE NUMBERS

3.0 SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS

3-1-3-2

SECTION 3 SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS

3.0 SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS

- 3.1 <u>Compliance</u>: The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the following:
- 3.1.1 The Pittsylvania County's "Standard Requirements & Instructions for Bidding", Version 1.4 dated May 22, 2008. Copies may be obtained from the Purchasing Office.

3.2 <u>Authority</u>:

A. The Purchasing Manager has the sole responsibility and authority for negotiating, placing, and when necessary modifying each and every invitation to bid, purchase order or other award issued by Pittsylvania County. In the discharge of the responsibilities, the Purchasing Manager may be assisted by assigned buyers. No other County officer or employee is authorized to order supplies or services, enter into purchase negotiations, or in any way obligate the government of Pittsylvania County for any indebtedness. Any purchases contrary to these provisions and authorities shall be void and the County shall not be bound thereby.

B. This procurement process, including withdrawal of bids and appeal or protests, is governed by the 'PROCUREMENT CODE OF PITTSYLVANIA COUNTY, VIRGINIA". Copies of the Procurement Code may be obtained by writing the Pittsylvania County Central Purchasing Department, 1 Center Street, Chatham, Virginia 24531. Pittsylvania County does not discriminate against faith based organizations.

3.3 Bid Preparation:

A. Bid proposals must be written in ink or typewritten and shall be submitted on the forms issued. Unsigned or qualified bids will not be accepted. No bid may be considered if received after the time shown on Title Page. Contractors are expected to examine all instructions, specifications, drawings, sites, installations, etc. Failure to do so will be at the Contractor's risk. Erasures or other changes must be initialed by the person signing the bid.

B. Envelopes containing bids must be sealed and marked in the lower left hand corner IFB 20-21-110 "Proposed Bridge Repair of Pedestrian Suspension Bridge – Pittsylvania Wayside Park over Sycamore Creek" and submitted to the office indicated on title page.

3.4 Payments to Subcontractors

- 1. The Contractor to take one of the two following actions within seven days after receipt of amounts paid to the Contractor by the state agency or local government for work performed by the subcontractor under that contract:
- a. Pay the subcontractor for the proportionate share of the total payment received from the agency attributable to the work performed by the subcontractor under that contract; or
- b. Notify the agency and subcontractor, in writing, of his intention to withhold all or a part of the subcontractor's payment with the reason for nonpayment.

- 2. Individual Contractors must provide their social security numbers and (ii) proprietorships, partnerships, and corporations to provide their federal employer identification numbers.
- 3. Contractor must pay interest to the subcontractor on all amounts owed by the Contractor that remain unpaid after seven days following receipt by the Contractor of payment from the state agency or agency of local government for work performed by the subcontractor under that contract, except for amounts withheld as allowed in subdivision 1.
- 4. Unless otherwise provided under the terms of this contract, interest shall accrue at the rate of one percent per month."

Contractor must include in each of its subcontracts a provision requiring each subcontractor to include or otherwise be subject to the same payment and interest requirements with respect to each lower-tier subcontractor.

A Contractor's obligation to pay an interest charge to a subcontractor pursuant to the payment clause in this section shall not be construed to be an obligation of the state agency or agency of local government. A contract modification shall not be made for the purpose of providing reimbursement for the interest charge. A cost reimbursement claim shall not include any amount for reimbursement for the interest charge.

3.5 Observance of Laws

The Contractor at all times shall observe and comply with all Federal, State and County laws, bylaws, ordinances and regulations in any manner affecting the conduct of the work or applying to employees on the project, as well as all orders or decrees which have been promulgated or enacted, by any legal bodies or tribunals having authority or jurisdiction over the work materials, employees or contract. The contractor does not, and shall not during the performance of the contract for goods and services in the Commonwealth; knowingly employ an unauthorized alien as defined in the federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.

SCC Number: Contractors organized or authorized as a stock or nonstock corporation, limited liability company, business trust, or limited partnership or registered as a limited liability partnership shall be authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth as a domestic or foreign business entity if so required by Title 13.1 or title 50 or as otherwise required by law.

A Contractor organized or authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth pursuant to Virginia Title 13.1 or Title 50 shall include in its bid or proposal the identification number issued to it by the State Corporation Commission. Any bidder or offeror that is not required to be authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth as a foreign business entity under Title 13.1 or Title 50 or as otherwise required by law shall include in its bid or proposal a statement describing why the bidder or offeror is not required to be so authorized.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION ROAD & BRIDGE SPECIFICATIONS 2020

PA	GE	NUN	ABER
----	-----------	-----	-------------

SPECIAL PROVISION E. MISCELLANEOUS NOTES

4-1

SPECIAL PROVISION E. MISCELLANEOUS NOTES

- 1. <u>Section 101 Virginia Department of Transportation or</u>

 Department shall be deemed to mean Pittsylvania County.
- 2. <u>SECTION 101.02 TERMS</u> of the Specifications is amended to add the following:

Liquidated Damages - Compensatory damages as set forth in the Contract, paid by the Contractor to the Department when the Contractor fails to complete the project within the time frame specified in the Contract. These damages include, but are not limited to, additional costs associated with administration, engineering, supervision and inspection of the project.

2a <u>SECTION 102.04 EVIDENCE OF EXAMINATION OF SITE WORK AND PROPOSAL</u> of the Specifications is amended to include the following:

The attendance of the Pre-Bid Meeting is mandatory.

2b. SECTION 102.04 EXAMINATION OF SITE OF WORK AND PROPOSAL of the Specifications is amended to replace the first sentence of the third paragraph with the following:

In the event a word, phrase, clause, or other portion of the plans, specifications, or other contract documents is alleged to be ambiguous, the Bidder shall submit to the Contract Engineer a written notice of same prior to the date of receipt of bids, and request an interpretation thereof.

3. <u>105.17 INSPECTION OF WORK</u>: The Contractor is hereby advised that the work on this project will be inspected under the Phase Inspection concept at critical stages; however, all stages of the work are subject to inspection.

Prior to beginning operations, the Engineer will meet with the Contractor to establish an understanding of the critical stages of work which will require the presence of an Inspector. The Contractor shall keep the Department informed, in a timely manner, of planned or contemplated operations on a continuing basis.

When an inspection reveals that work has not been properly performed, the Contractor will be so advised and he shall immediately inform the Department of his schedule for correcting such work, as well as the time at which a reinspection of such work can be made.

- 4. $\underline{517.07}$ CONSTRUCTION SURVEYING MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT of the Specification is expanded to include the following:
- All costs for Construction Surveying shall be included in Lump Sum bid for "Suspension Cable and Floorbeam Hanger System".

INDEX TECHNICAL SPECIAL SPECIFICATIONS

Section No.	<u>Title</u>	Page Number
05000	Suspension Cable and Floorbeam Hanger System	05000-1 - 05000-2
05010	Timber Decking	05010-1
05020	Timber Stringers and Timber Diaphragms	05020-1
05030	Timber Floor Beams	05030-1
05040	Timber Rail	05040-1-05040-2
05050	Repointing Rubble Masonry Joints	05050-1-05050-2
05060	Maintenance of Traffic	05060-1 - 05060-2

SUSPENSION CABLE AND FLOORBEAM HANGER SYSTEM

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

This item consists of supplying, fabricating, and installing the bridge rope and floorbeam hanger Α. system as detailed on the plans. The new suspension cable shall be attached to the existing eyebars that shall remain in place at both abutments. The suspension cable shall be 1 1/8" diameter bridge rope connected to each abutment with an open bridge rope spelter socket and open bridge socket. The suspension cable shall include all components shown in the plans including bridge rope, open bridge rope spelter socket, open bridge socket, and eyebar scab plate. Existing rubble masonry may have to be removed to allow proper fitment of eyebar scab plate. After completion of the eyebar scab plate, any areas of missing rubble masonry shall be repaired as directed by the Engineer. Only experienced individuals will be permitted to fabricate the bridge rope socket installation. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer certifications/experience of individuals performing the bridge rope socket installation for review. The suspension cable which includes the bridge rope, open bridge rope spelter socket, and open bridge socket shall be shipped to the bridge site as one complete fabricated piece. No on-site fabrication of the suspension cable will be permitted. The floorbeam hanger system shall consist of necessary items as detailed on the drawings to support the floorbeams including bridge rope clamps, plates "P1" & P2", threaded rods, U-bolt "U1", floorbeam hanger supports "C1" & "C2", and all fasteners including nuts, washers, lag screws. The Contractor shall submit shop drawings of all fabricated parts to the Engineer for review and approval. All metal components of the suspension cable and floorbeam hanger system shall be galvanized

1.02 **QUALITY ASSURANCE**

- A. The Contractor shall provide a notarized certification stating that the material meets the specified requirements.
- B. All sockets for attaching the wire rope to the existing eyebars shall be magnetic particle inspected at the critical areas.
- C. The Contractor shall submit shop drawings for the Engineer's approval for all parts that require fabrication.
- D. Thermo-Set resin socketing shall be performed
- E. All welding shall be performed by a certified welder.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. The wire rope for the suspension cable shall be ASTM 603 galvanized structural bridge rope (construction 7x1 or 6x25) Class C coating throughout.
- B. Open bridge rope spelter sockets shall be AISI 1038 steel, be galvanized and be equal to CBSI Clodfelter 3400 series.
- C. Open bridge sockets sockets shall be ASTM A148 steel, grade 105-85, be galvanized and be equal to CBSI Clodfelter 2600 open series.

- D. All structural shapes and plates shall be ASTM A36.
- E. All round shapes shall be ASTM A500 Grade B
- F. All nuts shall be ASTM A563, Grade DH

PART 3 <u>MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT</u>

3.01 METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

A. No measurement shall be required for "Suspension Cable and Floorbeam Hanger System" as the quantity shall be paid for on a "Lump Sum" basis.

3.02 BASIS OF PAYMENT

A. The Lump Sum price for "Suspension Cable and Floorbeam Hanger System" shall be full compensation for furnishing, fabricating, and installing all materials for the suspension cable and floorbeam hanger system including bridge rope, cable sleeve, open bridge rope spelter socket, open bridge socket, eybar scab plate, removing and repairing of rubble masonry in areas of eyebar scab plate, wire rope clamps, all fabricated parts including plates "P1" & P2", threaded rods, U-bolt "U1",floorbeam hanger supports "C1" & "C2" and all fasteners including nuts, washers, lag screws of the floorbeam hanger system and the furnishing of all labor, tools, equipment, and incidentals necessary to complete the work. Payment will be made under the contract pay item of:

"Suspension Cable and Floorbeam Hanger System" – Pay Unit will be on a "Lump Sum" basis.

TIMBER DECKING

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. This item consists of supplying, fabricating, and installing the 2x6 timber decking as detailed on the plans. The timber decking shall be attached to the stringers with #9 x 3" tan exterior self-starting star drive wood deck screws. Each timber decking shall be attached with two screws per stinger. The timber decking shall be treated with a chromated copper arsenate (CCA) preservative.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. The Contractor shall provide a notarized certification stating that the material meets the specified requirements.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. The timber decking shall be Southern Pine, No. 1.
- B. Fasteners shall be #9 x 3" self-starting star drive screws rated for exterior use with coating approved for use in treated lumber. The fasteners shall be tan in color.

PART 3 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

3.01 METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

A. "Timber Decking" shall be measure on a square foot basis.

3.02 BASIS OF PAYMENT

A. The Contract Unit price for "Timber Decking" shall be full compensation for furnishing and suppling all materials for the timber decking as shown on the plans, self starting wood deck screws, timber decking treatment, and the furnishing of all labor, tools, equipment, and incidentals necessary to complete the work. Payment will be made under the contract pay item of:

"Timber Decking" – Pay Unit will be on a per "Square Foot" basis.

TIMBER STRINGERS AND TIMBER DIAPHRAGMS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. This item consists of supplying, fabricating, and installing the 4x8 timber stringers and timber diaphragms as detailed on the plans. The timber stringers shall be attached to the floorbeams with fabricated angle brackets "C1" and ¼" diameter star drive washer head RSS structural screws as per the detailed drawings. The timber diaphragms shall be attached to the timber stringers with fabricated angle brackets "C2" and ¼" diameter star drive washer head RSS structural screw. The timber stringers and timber diaphragms shall be treated with a chromated copper arsenate (CCA) preservative.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. The Contractor shall provide a notarized certification stating that the material meets the specified requirements.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 <u>MATERIALS</u>

- A. The timber stringers and timber diaphragms shall be Southern Pine, No. 1 Dense.
- B. Fasteners shall be 1/4" diameter star drive washer head RSS screws rated for exterior use with coating approved for use in treated lumber.
- C. All structural shapes shall be ASTM A36.

PART 3 <u>MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT</u>

3.01 METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

A. "Timber Stringers and Timber Diaphragms" shall be measure on a linear foot basis.

3.02 BASIS OF PAYMENT

A. The Contract Unit price for "Timber Stringers and Timber Diaphragms" shall be full compensation for furnishing and suppling all materials for the timber stringers, timber diaphragms, fabricated angle brackets, RSS structural screws, timber treatment, drilling holes and all necessary fasteners as shown on the plans and the furnishing of all labor, tools, equipment, and incidentals necessary to complete the work. Payment will be made under the contract pay item of:

"Timber Stringers and Timber Diaphragms" – Pay Unit will be on a per "Linear Foot" basis.

TIMBER FLOOR BEAMS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. This item consists of supplying, fabricating, and installing the 4x8 timber floor beams, hanger hardware as detailed on the plans. The timber floorbeams shall be treated with a chromated copper arsenate (CCA) preservative.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. The Contractor shall provide a notarized certification stating that the material meets the specified requirements.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

A. The timber floorbeams shall be Southern Pine, No. 1 Dense.

PART 3 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

3.01 METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

A. "Timber Floorbeams" shall be measure on an Per Each basis.

3.02 <u>BASIS OF PAYMENT</u>

A. The Contract Unit price for "Timber Floorbeams" shall be full compensation for furnishing and suppling all materials for the timber floorbeams, timber treatment, hanger hardware and all necessary fasteners as shown on the plans and the furnishing of all labor, tools, equipment, and incidentals necessary to complete the work. Payment will be made under the contract pay item of:

[&]quot;Timber Floorbeams" – Pay Unit will be on a per "Each" basis.

TIMBER RAIL

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. This item consists of supplying and installing the timber rail system as detailed on the plans. The timber rail posts and rail post cross braces shall be treated with a chromated copper arsenate (CCA). All timber posts shall be attached to floorbeams with shear plate connectors (2 5/8") on each side of rail post. The shear plate connectors shall be installed with the appropriate sized dapping tool. The shear plate dapping tool consist of a cutter head and pilot and are designed to produce a dap of the same shape as the shear plate. A portable drill or drill press can be used with this tool. Insert the pilot into a predrilled hole or a drill bit may be used to drill and dap. The

timber

used for hand-contact surfaces such as rails shall be treated with either ammoniacal copper quaternary (ACQ) salt or copper azole (CA) preservative. All fasteners that will be in contact with wood using ACQ or CA wood preservative treatments shall be either 304 or 316 stainless steel or hot-dipped galvanized steel that conforms to ASTM A153 or ASTM A653, Class G185. The use

of

mechanically galvanized steel hardware of fasteners will not be permitted with ACQ or CA treated wood.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. The Contractor shall provide a notarized certification stating that the material meets the specified requirements.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. The timber posts shall be Southern Pine, No. 1 Dense and treated with a chromated copper arsenate (CCA).
- B. The timber rails shall be Southern Pine, No. 1 and treated with either ammoniacal copper quaternary (ACQ) salt or copper azole (CA) preservative.
- C. Shear plate connectors shall meet ASTM A47 Grade 32510, ASTM D5933 and shall be hot dipped galvanized and shall be manufactured by Portland Bolt & Manufacturing Company, Tool number 303/TSPT67.
- D. Fasteners shall be #9 x 3" self-starting star drive screws rated for exterior use with coating approved for use in ACQ or CA treated lumber. The fasteners shall be tan in color.

PART 3 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

3.01 METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

A. "Timber Rail" shall be measure on a "Lineal Foot" basis.

3.02 <u>BASIS OF PAYMENT</u>

A. The Contract Unit price for "Timber Rail" shall be full compensation for furnishing and suppling all materials for the timber rail system, timber treatment and all necessary fasteners as shown on the plans and the furnishing of all labor, tools, equipment, and incidentals necessary to complete the work. Payment will be made under the contract pay item of:

"Timber Rail" - Pay Unit will be on a "Lineal Foot" basis.

REPOINT RUBBLE MASONRY JOINTS

1.01 PROJECT CONDITIONS

- A. Do not repoint mortar joints or repair masonry unless air temperatures are 40 deg. F (4 deg C) and rising and will remain so for at least 48 hours after completion of work.
- B. Prevent grout or mortar used in repointing and repair work from staining face of surrounding masonry and other surfaces. Remove immediately grout and mortar in contact with exposed masonry and other surfaces.
- C. Protect sills, ledges and projects from mortar droppings.

1.02 SEQUENCING/SCHEDULING

- A. Perform repointing rubble masonry joints in the following sequence:
 - 1. Power pressure wash, cut stone and rough cut stone masonry.
 - 2. Remove loose existing mortar from joints in areas to be repointed.
 - 3. Repoint existing mortar joints of masonry in areas to be repointed.

2.01 MASONRY MATERIALS

- A. Mortar materials
 - 1. Portland Cement: ASTM C 150, Type I
 - 2. Hydrated Lime: ASTM C 207, Type S
 - 3. For pointing mortar provide sand with rounded edges.
 - 4. Match size, texture and gradation of existing mortar as closely as possible.
 - 5. Water. Clean, free of oils, acids, alkalis and organic matter.

2.02 CLEANING EQUIPMENT

A. Pressure washer shall be capable of providing a minimum of 5,000 psi.

2.03 POINT MORTAR MIXES

A. General:

- 1. Measurement and Mixing: Measure cementitious and aggregate material in a dry condition by volume or equivalent weight. Do not measure by shovel, use known measure. Mix materials in a clean mechanical batch mixer.
- 2. Mixing Pointing Mortar: Thoroughly mix cementitious and aggregate materials together before adding water. Then mix again adding only enough water to produce a damp, unworkable mix, which will retain its form when, pressed into a ball. Maintain mortar in this dampened condition for 1 to 2 hours. Add remaining water in small portions until mortar of desired consistency is reached. Use mortar within 30 minutes of final mixing; do not retemper or use partially hardened material.

Pointing Mortar for Rubble Masonry: One part white Portland cement, 1 part lime, 6 parts colored mortar aggregate.

PART 3 – EXECUTION

3.01 MASONRY CLEANING

Power pressure wash all joints to be repointed to remove all loose mortar, dirt, grime and foreign substances.

3.02 REPOINTING EXISTING MASONRY

A. Joint Pointing

- 1. Rinse masonry joint surfaces with water to remove any dust and mortar particles. Time application of rinsing so that, at time of pointing, excess water has evaporated or run off, and joint surfaces are damp but free of standing water.
- 2. Apply first layer of pointing mortar to areas where existing mortar are missing to depths greater than surrounding areas. Apply in layers not greater than 3/8" until a uniform depth is formed. Compact each layer thoroughly and allow to become thumbprint-hard before applying next layer.
- 3. After joints have been filled to a uniform depth, place remaining pointing mortar in 3 layers with each of first and second layers filling approximately 2/5 of joint depth and third layer the remaining 1/5. Fully compact each layer and allow to become thumbprint hard before applying next layer. Take care not to spread mortar over edges onto exposed masonry surfaces, or to featheredge mortar.
- 4. When mortar is thumbprint hard, tool joints to match original appearance of joints, unless otherwise indicated. Remove excess mortar from edge of joint by brushing.
- 5. Cure mortar by maintaining in a damp condition for not less than 72 hours.

PART 4 – COMPENSATION

4.01 METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

"REPOINT RUBBLE MASONRY JOINTS" will be measured on a "lineal foot" basis along the length of joints, complete-in-place.

4.02BASIS OF PAYMENT

This item shall include all costs, labor, tools, equipment, incidentals and materials for surface preparation, furnishing and placing mortar mix. All areas to be repaired shall be located by the Engineer.

MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. This work shall consist of maintenance and protection of pedestrian and vehicular traffic through or around areas of construction. It shall include covering and uncovering existing signs, furnishing, erecting and maintenance of new construction signs, sign posts, flags, Group 2 channelizing devices, drums, cones, and all other items used for traffic maintenance as required by the contract drawings, Contract Documents, and the Virginia Work Area Protection Manual. It also includes the furnishing of flagmen and lights. At the completion of this project the construction signs and sign posts & all traffic control devices shall be removed by the Contractor and shall remain the property of the Contractor. This item also includes all costs associated with lighting and barricading the work areas from pedestrians and motorists according to the plan developed by the CONTRACTOR and approved by the ENGINEER.

All traffic control for this project shall be furnished and installed in accordance with the contract drawings, the current edition of the Virginia Work Area Protection Manual and as directed by the Engineer.

All work shall be scheduled and performed in such a manner as to provide a minimum of interference and maximum protection to traffic and workmen.

The CONTRACTOR shall take adequate precautions to prevent material, sand or other debris from being spilled, blown or tracked onto Sycamore Creek throughout the duration of this project. Should any material get onto a Sycamore Creek, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately stop work and have it removed. The ENGINEER may stop work, if conditions warrant, due to blowing sand.

1.02 **QUALITY ASSURANCE**

A. The Contractor shall provide a notarized certification stating that the material meets the specified requirements.

PART 2 <u>MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT</u>

2.01 <u>METHOD OF MEASUREMENT</u>

A. "Maintenance of Traffic" will be paid for on a "Lump-Sum" basis wherein no measurement will be made.

2.02 BASIS OF PAYMENT

A. Maintenance of traffic will be paid for at the Contract "Lump-Sum" price, which price shall be full compensation for covering and uncovering existing signs, furnishing, installing, erecting, maintenance and removal of new construction signs, sign posts, cones, flags, lights, Group 2 channelizing devices, and all costs for flagmen in area of construction zone. Also included is lighting and barricading the work area from pedestrians and motorists; and for all materials, labor, tools, equipment, and incidentals necessary to complete the work.

The Contractor will be paid 30-percent of the lump sum bid price upon satisfactory installation of the required maintenance of traffic items to commence construction operations and active prosecution of the work. Contingent upon active pursuit of work, the Contractor will receive monthly payments for maintenance of traffic based on the daily dollar amount of the bid price for maintenance of traffic until 90-percent of the unit bid price is paid. The remaining 10-percent will be paid for after all maintenance of traffic items are removed at final acceptance of the Contract.

Payment will be made under the contract pay item:

"MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC: - Pay unit will be on a "Lump-Sum" basis.